
  

The Town of Hilton Head Island 

Regular Town Council Meeting 

January 20, 2015 

 

4:00 P.M. – BENJAMIN M. RACUSIN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

AGENDA 

 

As a Courtesy to Others Please Turn Off/Silence All Mobile Devices During 

 the Town Council Meeting 

1)  Call to Order 

2)  Pledge to the Flag 

3)  Invocation 

4) FOIA Compliance – Public notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and 
mailed in compliance with the Freedom of Information Act and the Town of Hilton Head 
Island requirements. 

5) Proclamations and Commendations 

None. 

6) Approval of Minutes 

a. Town Council Meeting, January 6, 2015 

7)    Report of the Town Manager 

a. Semi Annual Update of the Design Review Board – Scott Sodemann, Chairman 

b. Town Manager’s Items of Interest 

(1) Town News 

(2) Noteworthy Events 

8)  Reports from Members of Council 

a. General Reports from Council  

9)    Appearance by Citizens 

10)    Unfinished Business 

a. Revised First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2014-26 

Revised First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2014-26 of the Town of Hilton Head 
Island, South Carolina, authorizing the execution and delivery of a lease of real 
property owned by the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, with the Beaufort 
County Sheriff’s Office and Beaufort County, South Carolina, pursuant to the authority 
of S.C. Code Ann. § 5-7-40 (Supp. 2011), and § 2-7-20, Code of the Town of Hilton 
Head Island, South Carolina, (1983); and providing for severability and an effective 
date. 

 

 



b. Second Reading Proposed Ordinance 2015-04 

Second Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2015-04 to amend Title 16, the Land 
Management Ordinance, of the Municipal Code of the Town Of Hilton Head Island, 
South Carolina, by amending Section 16-1-107, the Official Zoning Map and the Hilton 
Head Plantation Master Plan with respect to the certain parcels identified as Parcels 
89A, 121, 126, 127 and 128 on Beaufort County Tax District R510 Map 3, within the 
Hilton Head Plantation Master Plan under the PD-1 Zoning District,  by changing the 
allowed use from commercial to group living, and by increasing the allowed density on 
Parcels 89a, 127, and 128 from 10,283 square feet to 126 dwelling units, and by 
increasing the allowed density on parcels 121 and 126 from zero to 26 dwelling units or 
a 50,000 square foot assisted living facility, and providing for severability and an 
effective date. 

11)    New Business 

a. First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2015-01 

First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2015-01 of The Town Council of the Town of 
Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, authorizing the execution of a lease with the 
Drydock Enterprises, Ltd. d/b/a The Drydock, pursuant to the authority of S.C. Code 
Ann.  § 5-7-40 (Supp. 2011), and § 2-7-20, Code of the Town of Hilton Head Island, 

South Carolina, (1983); and providing for severability and an effective date.   

b. First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2015-02 

First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2015-02 of the Town Of Hilton Head Island, 
South Carolina, authorizing the execution of a sale and purchase agreement and the 
execution of a deed for the sale of approximately 2.4 acres of real property along 
Spanish Wells Road to the Paddocks Limited Liability Company, pursuant to the 
authority of S.C. Code Ann.  § 5-7-40 (Supp. 2011), and § 2-7-20, Code Of The Town 

Of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, (1983); and providing for severability and an 
effective date. 

c. First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2015-05 

First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2015-05 of the Town of Hilton Head Island, 
South Carolina, to amend Title 2 General Government and Administration of the 
Municipal Code of the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina by amending 
Chapter 5 (Meetings of Council and Rules of Procedure) Section 2-5-60, Committees 
of Council; and providing for severability and an effective date. 

12)   Adjournment 

 



   

Town Council Meeting 
January 6, 2015 

Page 1 of 4 

 

THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Date:  Tuesday, January 6, 2015                                Time: 4:00 P.M. 

Present from Town Council: David Bennett, Mayor; Bill Harkins, Mayor Pro Tem; Marc 
Grant, Tom Lennox, John McCann, Council Members 

Absent from Town Council:  Lee Edwards, Kim Likins, Council Members 

Present from Town Staff: Steve Riley, Town Manager; Greg DeLoach, Assistant Town 

Manager; Brad Tadlock, Fire Chief; Charles Cousins, Director of Community Development; 
Nancy Gasen, Director of Human Resources; Scott Liggett, Director of Public Projects and 

Facilities/Chief Engineer; Brian Hulbert, Staff Attorney; Susan Simmons, Director of Finance; 
Jeff Buckalew, Town Engineer; Julian Walls, Facilities Manager; Anne Cyran, Senior Planner; 
Heather Colin, Development Review Administrator; Vicki Pfannenschmidt, Executive 

Assistant/Town Clerk 

Present from Media:  Dan Burley, Island Packet   

 

1)     CALL TO ORDER  

Mayor Bennett called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

2)     PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 

3)     INVOCATION 

4) FOIA Compliance – Public notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and 
mailed in compliance with the Freedom of Information Act and the Town of Hilton Head 
Island requirements. 

5) Proclamations and Commendations 

None. 

6) Approval of Minutes 

a. Town Council Meeting, December 16, 2014 

Mr. Harkins moved to approve.  Mr. McCann seconded.  The minutes of the December 
16, 2014 Town Council Regular Meeting were unanimously approved by a vote of 5-0. 

7)    Report of the Town Manager 

a. Town Manager’s Items of Interest 

Mr. Riley report on the items of interest listed below. 

(1) Town News 
(2)   Noteworthy Events 

 



   

Town Council Meeting 
January 6, 2015 

Page 2 of 4 

b. February 3, 2015 Town Council Meeting 

Mr. Riley explained that the MASC Hometown Legislative Action Day conflicts with 
the meeting and after discussion it was the consensus of Council to reschedule the 
February 3 Town Council meeting.   

c. Semi-Annual Land Acquisition Update 

Mr. Riley reviewed the information stating he was available for any questions and 
distributed a list of properties that were purchased with the $17,000,000 Bond. 

Mr. McCann noted he has received calls and emails concerning the usage of Town owned 
land.  He stated he would like Council to further review and discuss the subject in detail at 
a future workshop/meeting.   

8)  Reports from Members of Council 

a. General Reports from Council  

Mr. Harkins stated Don Kirkman, Executive Director of the EDC held a session with 
members of the community that have significant investment in the medical market.  
The group reviewed needs for the Community and discussed future directives.   

Mr. Grant asked that Mr. Kirkman be invited to give reports at future Town Council 
Meetings.  Mayor Bennett asked Mr. Riley to work on scheduling. 

Mayor Bennett stated his he would like Council to create a Circle to Circle Committee/ 
Task Force under purveyance of the Planning Commission.  After discussion, it was 
decided that the Mayor and Planning Commission Chairmen would meet with Steve 
and have discussions for moving forward.   
 
Mayor Bennett stated he has been working on Committee assignments and requested 
Mr. Riley to draft whatever resolutions or proposed changes to ordinances that would 
be necessary for the following.  He said he would like to establish a Finance and 
Administrative Committee and would like to roll the function of the Personnel 
Committee into a Community Services Committee, generally seeing that the committee 
responsibilities would include former responsibilities of Personnel Committee and add 
arts and culture oversight and development, as well as affordable housing.  He stated he 
would like to rename the Planning & Development Standards Committee to Public 
Planning Committee and will talk off line with Mr. Riley as necessary to better 
document that. 

9)    Appearance by Citizens 

 Mr. Charlie Lovely addressed Council with his concerns on the Marshland Road/Mathews 
Drive roundabout project. Mayor Bennett asked him to put his comments to paper and 
arrange to meet with the Town Engineer and the project manager.  Mr. Grant stated he has 
spoken with many residents in that area and they are happy the roundabout is finally being 
constructed as it will alleviate traffic problems.     

10)    Unfinished Business 

a. None. 
 



   

Town Council Meeting 
January 6, 2015 

Page 3 of 4 

11)    New Business 

a.   Consideration of a Recommendation – Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office Contract 

Consideration of a Recommendation that Town Council approve a contract with 
Beaufort County and the Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) for law 
enforcement services for the Town of Hilton Head Island.   

Mr. Harkins moved to approve.  Mr. McCann seconded.  Mr. Lennox expressed 
concern there was no defined amount in the contract.  Mr. Riley explained the BCSO 
budget is fiscal year and the contract is on a calendar year.  After lengthy discussion, 
the motion was unanimously approved by a vote of 5-0.   

b. First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2014-26 

First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2014-26 of the Town of Hilton Head Island, 
South Carolina, authorizing the execution and delivery of a lease of real property 
owned by the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, with the Beaufort County 
Sheriff’s Office and Beaufort County, South Carolina, pursuant to the authority of S.C. 
Code Ann. § 5-7-40 (Supp. 2011), and § 2-7-20, Code of the Town Of Hilton Head 
Island, South Carolina, (1983); and providing for severability and an effective date. 

Mr. Harkins moved to approve.  Mr. McCann seconded.  Mr. Harkins expressed an 
interest in obtaining cost calculations on the property.  Mr. Riley reviewed the purchase 
price, rent income and square footage costs.  Mayor Bennett expressed concern with 
leasing a piece of property in a prime location at such a low price. He suggested Town 
Council build in a provision that allows the Town to relocate the BCSO to another 
space if the Town finds another tenant at higher rent.  Sheriff Tanner explained that the 
Town pays about one fourth of what it would cost to have a Town police force noting it 
would cost between 12 to 15 million dollars to create a police force.  Mayor Bennett 
stated he was not speaking of the value of services but the value of the real estate.  Mr. 
Hulbert explained the Town did not put an early termination clause in the agreement 
because they did not anticipate there would be an early termination.  Mr. McCann 
moved to amend the motion to accept the lease as written with the modification of 
adding a relocation clause.  Mr. Harkins seconded.  The amended motion was 
unanimously approved by a vote of 5-0. 

c.    First Reading Proposed Ordinance 2015-04 

First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2015-04 to amend Title 16, the Land 
Management Ordinance, of the Municipal Code of the Town Of Hilton Head Island, 
South Carolina, by amending Section 16-1-107, the Official Zoning Map and the Hilton 
Head Plantation Master Plan with respect to the certain parcels identified as Parcels 
89A, 121, 126, 127 and 128 on Beaufort County Tax District R510 Map 3, within the 
Hilton Head Plantation Master Plan under the PD-1 Zoning District,  by changing the 
allowed use from commercial to group living, and by increasing the allowed density on 
Parcels 89a, 127, and 128 from 10,283 square feet to 126 dwelling units, and by 
increasing the allowed density on parcels 121 and 126 from zero to 26 dwelling units or 
a 50,000 square foot assisted living facility, and providing for severability and an 
effective date. 



   

Town Council Meeting 
January 6, 2015 

Page 4 of 4 

Mr. Harkins moved to approve.  Mr. McCann seconded.  Mr. Harkins spoke in support 
of the rezoning.  Terry Conway, President of the Hilton Head Plantation POA spoke in 
support of the rezoning and Roy Plekenpohl, a resident of the Cypress, read a statement 
of support.  Walter Nestor, attorney for the applicant noted the applicants were present 
and available to answer questions.  Mr. Greg Iglehart of Bayshore Retirement Living 
expressed his appreciation and explained the specifics regarding the project. The 
motion was unanimously approved by a vote of 5-0. 

d. Consideration of a Resolution – Shelter Cove Harbour Company Drainage 

Agreement 

Consideration of a Resolution of the town council of the Town Of Hilton Head Island, 
South Carolina, authorizing the execution of that certain drainage agreement and 
access, drainage and maintenance easement with Shelter Cove Harbour Company 
across property located in the Shelter Cove area on Hilton Head Island, South Carolina. 

Mr. Harkins moved to approve.  Mr. McCann seconded.  The motion was unanimously 
approved by a vote of 5-0.  

12)    Adjournment 

Mr. Harkins moved to adjourn.  Mr. McCann seconded.  The motion was unanimously 
approved by a vote of 5-0.  The meeting was adjourned at 5:32 p.m. 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Vicki L. Pfannenschmidt, 
Executive Assistant/Town Clerk 

 

Approved: 

 

 

____________________________ 

David Bennett, Mayor 



 

  

IItteemmss  ooff  IInntteerreesstt  

JJaannuuaarryy  2200,,  22001155  

  
  

11..  TToowwnn  NNeewwss    
Brian Hulbert, Staff Attorney, was recently elected President of the Municipal Attorneys Association of 
South Carolina.   

(Contact: Brian Hulbert, Staff Attorney (843) 341-4633 or brianh@hiltonheadidslandsc.gov) 

 

22..  NNootteewwoorrtthhyy  EEvveennttss  
a) Some of the upcoming meetings at Town Hall: 

•   Design Review Board – January 27, 2015, 1:15 p.m. 

•   Town Council Meeting scheduled for February 3, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. has been rescheduled to take 
place Tuesday, February 10, 2015 

•   Planning Commission – February 4, 2015, 9:00 a.m. 

•   Town Council – February 10, 2015, 4:00 p.m. 
   

(Meetings subject to change and/or cancellation.  Please visit the Town of Hilton Head Island website 

at www.hiltonheadislandsc.gov for meeting agendas. 

 

22001155  HHiillttoonn  HHeeaadd  IIssllaanndd  EEvveennttss  

 

January 24, 2014 
11:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. 

Hilton Head Snow Day Shelter Cove Community Park 

February 7, 2015 
12:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

Taste of Gullah 
Arts Center of Coastal Carolina  

(Parking Lot) 



 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Town Council  
   
FROM: Stephen G. Riley, ICMA-CM, Town Manager 
Via:   Greg D. DeLoach, Esquire, Assistant Town Manager 
  Brian E. Hulbert, Staff Attorney 
 
RE:  Revised First Reading of Proposed Ordinance Number 2014-26/ Execution 

of a Lease with Beaufort County, South Carolina and the Beaufort County 
Sheriff’s Office 

  

DATE: J anuary 8, 2014 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

 
At the First Reading on January 6, 2015, Town Council directed that a paragraph be 

added to the lease which would allow the Town, County, or BCSO to be able to terminate the 
lease early.  As a result, language has been added to paragraph 2 of the lease which will now 
allow any party to terminate the lease early with ninety (90) days written notice to the other 
parties.  No other changes were made to the lease or Proposed Ordinance #2014-26. 

 
This additional language was provided to the BCSO and to the County Administrator for 

review and comment.  Both the County Administrator and Sheriff Tanner have approved of the 
revised language being added to the lease. 
 

 



 

 
Page 1 of  2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 
 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2014-26               PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO.  2014- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LEASE OF REAL 

PROPERTY OWNED BY THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH 

CAROLINA, WITH THE BEAUFORT COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND 

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 

S.C. CODE ANN. § 5-7-40 (SUPP. 2011), AND § 2-7-20, CODE OF THE TOWN OF 

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, (1983); AND PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, owns a parcel of real 

property which is located at 70 Shelter Cove Lane, Hilton Head Island, South Carolina; and 

 WHEREAS, The Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, purchased the property 

located at 70 Shelter Cove Lane, in part, to provide a location for the Hilton Head Island Office 

of the Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council for the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina has 

determined that it is in the best interests of the Town to enter into a Lease Agreement with the 

Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office and Beaufort County, South Carolina, Hilton Head Island, 

South Carolina. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED BY THE TOWN 

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA; AND IT 

IS ORDAINED BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE  TOWN COUNCIL: 

 

 Section  1  Execution of Lease. 
 
(a) The Mayor and Town Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the “Lease” 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 
 
(b) The Mayor and Town Manager are hereby authorized to take such other and further 
actions as may be necessary to complete the fulfillment of the Town's obligations under the 
Lease which is authorized hereby. 
 
 



 

 
Page 2 of  2 

 Section  2  Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence, or portion of this 

Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and 

such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 

 Section  3  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption thereof by 

the Town Council for the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN 

OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND ON THIS _____ DAY OF ___________________, 2015. 
         
 
 
        
      
 _____________________________ 
 David Bennett, Mayor 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Victoria L.  Pfannenschmidt, Town Clerk  
 
 
First Reading:      ___________________________, 2015 
 
Revised First Reading: ______________________, 2015 
 
Second Reading: ____________________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Gregory M. Alford, Town Attorney 
 
 
Introduced by Council Member:__________________________________ 



EXHIBIT “A” 



 

 i 

 
 
 
 
 
 

LEASE OF SUITES B, C, D, E, F, H, I, J  and K OF 
 

70  SHELTER COVE LANE 
 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 
 

THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, 
 

AND  
 

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA  
 

AND  
 

THE BEAUFORT COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DATED THIS _ _ _  DAY OF J ANUARY, 2015. 



 

 ii 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
LEASED PREMISES ................................................................................................... Page 1 
 
TERM ........................................................................................................................... Page 1 
 
RENT .......................................................................................................................... Page 2 

RENT SCHEDULE .......................................................................................... Page 2 
 
USE AND COMPLIANCE .......................................................................................... Page 3 

PERMITTED USE ........................................................................................... Page 3 
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS .............. Page 3 

 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR ................................................................................. Page 3 

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF LEASED PREMISES ............................. Page 3 
TOWN’S RIGHT OF ENTRY ........................................................................... Page 4 
LIMITATION ON TOWN’S OBLIGATION TO REPAIR: ............................... Page 4 
TOWN’S CONSENT REQUIRED FOR ALTERATIONS ................................ Page 4 
ADDITIONAL COUNTY AND BSCO OBLIGATIONS .................................... Page 4 
TOWN NOT LIABLE ....................................................................................... Page 4 

 
TOWN REPRESENTATIONS: ....................................................................................Page 5 

ZONING ...........................................................................................................Page 5 
QUIET ENJ OYMENT ......................................................................................Page 5 

 
SURRENDER OF LEASED PREMISES .....................................................................Page 5 
 
TOWN’S RIGHT OF ENTRY .......................................................................................Page 5 
 
UTILITIES .................................................................................................................. Page 6 

UTILITY CONNECTIONS .............................................................................. Page 6 
ARRANGEMENT AND PAYMENT FOR UTILITIES .................................... Page 6 

 
SIGNS ......................................................................................................................... Page 6 
 
CONTROL OF LEASED PREMISES .......................................................................... Page 6 

THE COUNTY AND BCSO’S EXCLUSIVE CONTROL .................................. Page 6 
COUNTY AND BCSO DUTY TO INSURE ...................................................... Page 6 
SURVIVAL ....................................................................................................... Page 6 

 
DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION OF LEASED PREMISES ......................................... Page 6 

DESTRUCTION OF LEASED PREMISES: ..................................................... Page 6 
DAMAGE TO LEASED PREMISES ................................................................. Page 7 
RENT ABATEMENT DURING REPAIR ......................................................... Page 7 



 

 iii 

EMINENT DOMAIN ................................................................................................... Page 7 
TERMINATION OF LEASE ............................................................................. Page 7 
NOTICE OF ELECTION .................................................................................. Page 7 
CONDEMNATION AWARD ........................................................................... Page 8 

 
SUBLETTING PROHIBITED .................................................................................... Page 8 
 
DEFAULT OF COUNTY AND BCSO ......................................................................... Page 8 

FAILURE TO PAY RENT OR MONEY DUE .................................................. Page 8 
VIOLATION OF LEASE .................................................................................. Page 8 
ABANDONMENT OF LEASED PREMISES ................................................... Page 8 
INSOLVENCY ................................................................................................. Page 8 
FAILURE TO BUDGET FOR RENT ............................................................... Page 9 
DISSOLUTION ................................................................................................ Page 9 
WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS ................................................... Page 9 

 
DEFAULT OF THE TOWN ........................................................................................ Page 9 
 
RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES ON DEFAULT ............................................................... Page 9 

ALL REMEDIES PRESERVED: ...................................................................... Page 9 
ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS ................................................................... Page 9 

 
INTERPRETATION .................................................................................................. Page 10  
 
NO WAIVER .............................................................................................................. Page 10  
 
MECHANIC’S OR OTHER LIENS ............................................................................ Page 10  
 
ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES ..................................................................................... Page 11 
 
WAIVER OF J URY TRIAL ........................................................................................ Page 11 
 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: ..................................................................................... Page 11 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS PROHIBITED .................................................. Page 11 
TOWN”S RIGHTS .......................................................................................... Page 11 
INDEMNIFICATION ..................................................................................... Page 12 

 
MISCELLANEOUS .................................................................................................... Page 12 

BINDING EFFECT ......................................................................................... Page 12 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT/ AMENDMENT AND MODIFICATIONS ............... Page 12 
SEVERABILITY .............................................................................................. Page 12 
EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS .............................................................. Page 12 
APPLICABLE LAW ........................................................................................ Page 12 
CAPTIONS ...................................................................................................... Page 12 



 

 iv 

RECORDING PROHIBITED: ........................................................................ Page 12 
PLURAL/ SINGULAR ..................................................................................... Page 12 
NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES ........................................................... Page 13 
NOTICES ........................................................................................................ Page 13 
SURVIVAL ...................................................................................................... Page 13 
FURTHER ASSURANCES AND CORRECTIVE DOCUMENTS ................... Page 14 



 

 
1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      )   LEASE 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT   )  
 
 This Lease Agreement (herein, the “Lease”), is made and entered into on this 
_ _ _ _  day of J anuary, 2015, between the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina 
(herein, the “Town”), Beaufort County, South Carolina, (herein, the “County”), and the 
Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office (herein, the “BCSO”). 
 
 For and in consideration of the Rent to be paid by the County and BCSO 
hereunder, and the full and faithful performance of the following terms and conditions, 
the Town, the County and BCSO (herein, the “Parties”), hereto mutually understand and 
agree as follows: 
 
1. LEASED PREMISES: 
 
 (a) The Town hereby leases to the County and BCSO, and the County and 
BCSO hereby lease from the Town, 17,011 square feet of office space plus 74 square feet 
(which equals BCSO’s pro-rata share of the Common Area of the Building) for a total of 
17,085 square feet and all other improvements contained within the building located at 

70  Shelter Cove Lane, Suites B, C, D, E, F, H, I, J  and K, Hilton Head Island, South 
Carolina (herein, the “Building”), the floor plan of which is shown on the attached 
Exhibit “A” (herein, “the Leased Premises”). For the purposes of this Lease, the total 
square feet of the Leased Premises has been determined by measuring from the outside 
of any exterior walls and from the middle of any interior walls.  
   

(b) The County and BCSO shall have the non-exclusive right in common with 
the Town and any other tenant, to those areas in the Building, including the building 
entrances, lobbies, corridors, loading docks, trash removal areas, grounds, roads, 
driveways, sidewalks, parking areas and facilities, and other similar areas, which enable 
the County and BCSO to obtain the use and enjoyment of the Leased Premises for its 
Permitted Use (hereinafter, the “Common Areas”). 
 
2. TERM: 
 
 (a) The County and BCSO shall have and hold the Leased Premises for a term 
(herein, the “Lease Term”) beginning on the 18th day of J anuary, 2015 (herein, the 
“Commencement Date”), and ending at midnight on J anuary 31, 2018 (herein, the 
“Expiration Date”). 
 
 (b) The County and BCSO’s entry into, and taking possession of, the Leased 
Premises shall constitute BCSO acknowledgment that the Leased Premises are in a good 
and tenantable condition as of the beginning of the Lease Term. At the time of execution 



 

 

2 

of this Lease or at any time thereafter, the Town shall be under no duty to make 
alterations or repairs to the Leased Premises that are not expressly set forth in this 
Lease. 
 
 (c) If the Town is unable to deliver possession of the Leased Premises upon 
the Commencement Date, then neither the Town nor its agents shall be liable for any 
damages caused to the County and BCSO by reason of the delay, nor shall this Lease 
become void or voidable; however, except as otherwise expressly provided, BCSO shall 
not be liable for the payment of Rent until the Town delivers possession of the Leased 
Premises. 
 
 (d) If the County and BCSO shall be in possession of the Leased Premises after 
the Expiration Date (herein, the “Holdover Period”), and in the absence of any written 
agreement extending the Lease Term hereof, or the Town’s demand to the County and 
BCSO to sooner vacate the Leased Premises, the tenancy under this Lease shall become 
one from month to month terminable by either Party on 30  days prior written notice. 
Such tenancy shall be subject to all other conditions, provisions and obligations of this 
Lease provided, however, that: 
 

(1) the Rent due to the Town during the first three (3) months of any 
Holdover Period shall be One Hundred Fifteen (115%) Percent of 
the Rent due to the Town from the County and BCSO during the 
last month of the Lease Term; and, 

 
(2) the Rent due to the Town for the fourth (4 th) month and thereafter 

of any Holdover Period shall be One Hundred Fifty (150%) Percent 
of the Rent due to the Town from the County and BCSO during the 
last month of the Lease Term. 

 
(e)  Either the Town, County, or BCSO, upon ninety (90) days advance written 

notice to the other parties, may terminate this Lease. Provided however, such early 
termination shall be exercisable only after a suitable alternative facility has been 
identified and secured by the parties so as to ensure the continuous and uninterrupted 
ability of the BCSO to provide law enforcement services. Additionally, provided that 
BCSO and the County are not in arrears in payment of the Annual Rent or otherwise in 
default hereunder, this Lease shall terminate at the expiration of the 90th day after 
notice and, except as specifically set forth herein, the parties shall have no further 
liabilities hereunder. 

 
3. RENT: 
 
 The following Rent schedule is based an annual Rent rate of Sixty Five Thousand 
Three Hundred Thirty Five and 80/ 100  ($65,335.80) Dollars.  The Rent shall be 
payable in equal quarterly payments, in advance, beginning on the Commencement 



 

 
3 

Date, and thereafter, on the first day of every quarter (J anuary 1, April 1, July 1 and 
October 1)  throughout the entire Lease Term; provided, however, that Rent payments  
for the month in which the Expiration Date occurs shall be prorated based upon the 
number of days remaining in  the month, calculated on a daily rate using a Thirty (30) 
day month. 
  
4.  LATE FEES: 
 
 Any payment of Rent not received on or before the Tenth ( 10 th) day of the month 
in which the Rent is due to be paid will be assessed a charge of Ten (10%) percent on the 
entire past due amount and any payments of Rent hereunder not received on or before 
the Fifteenth (15th) day of the month will be assessed an additional charge of one and 
½ % per month, or 18% per annum on the entire past due amount until paid by the 
County and BCSO.  Any payment of Rent not paid by the Tenth (10 th) day of the month 
in which the payment is due constitutes a Default of the County and BCSO’s obligations 
under the terms of this Lease.  The assessment of the late fees in this article 4 is an 
additional remedy due to the Town, and is in  addition to any other remedy for a Default 
that is provided in this Lease. 
 
5. USE AND COMPLIANCE: 
 
 (a) PERMITTED USE:  The County and BCSO shall continuously occupy and 
use the Leased Premises as the Hilton Head Island Headquarters of the Beaufort County 
Sheriff’s Department” (herein the “Permitted Use”), to include all normal daily 
operations of the Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office, including the installation of a short 
term holding cell within the confines of the Leased Premises, unless the written consent 
of the Town is first obtained for any other use.  The Leased Premises shall not be used 
for any use other than the Permitted Use, or which is disreputable, creates extraordinary 
fire hazards, results in an increased rate of insurance on the Building, or the contents 
therein, or for the storage of any Hazardous Materials as defined herein (other than 
those which might be used in  the ordinary course of the County and BCSO’s Permitted 
Use, and then only in compliance with all applicable laws related thereto). 
 
 (b) COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS:  The 
County and BCSO shall comply with all applicable statutes, ordinances, rules, 
covenants, restrictions and regulations relating to the use, condition, access to and 
occupancy of the Leased Premises and shall maintain the Leased Premises free of trash, 
litter and debris, and in a clean and sightly condition. 
 
6. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR: 
 
 (a) MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF LEASED PREMISES: The County 
and BCSO shall keep and maintain the Leased Premises in good order, condition and 
repair; provided, however, that the obligation of the BCSO and the County to maintain, 



 

 

4 

repair or replace any structural portion of the Leased Premises, the exterior and interior 
portion of all doors, window glass, plate glass, plumbing fixtures, water and sewage 
equipment, pipes and lines, mechanical, heating and air-conditioning and electrical 
systems, sprinkler systems, the foundation, roof, interior and exterior walls, floors and 
ceilings applicable to or within the Leased Premises, shall be limited to Five Hundred 
and no/ 100 ($500.00) per occurrence.  Any repair or replacement, on any occurrence, 
costing over Five Hundred and no/ 100 ($500.00) Dollars shall be paid by the Town, 
unless the cause of the repair or replacement is any act or omission of the County or the 
BSCO, or any combination of them, upon which the County and BCSO shall be liable for 
the total cost of the repair or replacement. 
 (b) TOWN’S RIGHT OF ENTRY: The Town, including contractors hired 
by the Town, shall have the right to enter the Leased Premises upon twenty four (24) 
hours’ notice to the BCSO for the purpose of performing repair or replacement work at 
the Leased Premises, except in  the case of emergency.  In the event of an emergency, the 
Town, including contractors hired by the Town, may enter the Leased Premises for the 
purpose of making repairs with no notice to the County or BCSO. 
 
 (c) LIMITATION ON TOWN’S OBLIGATION TO REPAIR: The Town 
shall have no obligation to repair, maintain or replace any installations made by the 
County and BCSO under the terms of this Lease, and the County and the BCSO shall be 
solely responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement of the same. 
 
 (d) TOWN’S CONSENT REQUIRED FOR ALTERATIONS: The County 
and BCSO shall not make any alteration of, or addition or improvement to, the Leased 
Premises without securing the Town’s prior written consent.  Any and all roof, exterior 
wall or foundation slab penetrations must first be approved by and coordinated through 
the Town.  The County and BCSO shall save the Town harmless on account of claims for 
mechanics or materialmen’s liens, or any other lien, in connection with any work 
performed by the County and BCSO, and any such liens shall exist only against the 
County and BCSO’s leasehold interest and shall be discharged, by bond or otherwise, 
within 30  days of the filing and service of thereof.   
 
 (e) ADDITIONAL COUNTY AND BSCO OBLIGATIONS: The County and 
BCSO shall keep and maintain the Leased Premises in accordance with all directions, 
rules and regulations of the proper officials of any government or other agency having 
jurisdiction over the Building, at the sole cost and expense of the County and BCSO, and 
the County and BCSO shall comply with all requirements of law, statute, ordinance, 
covenants, restrictions or otherwise, governing the use of the Leased Premises and all 
appurtenances thereto.   
 
 (f) TOWN NOT LIABLE: The Town shall not be liable for any loss or 
damage to the County and BCSO’s personal property, equipment, fixtures and 
improvements to the Leased Premises. 
 



 

 
5 

7. TOWN REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
 (a) ZONING: The Town hereby warrants and represents that the Leased 
Premises are properly zoned for the County and BCSO’s proposed use as a Sheriff’s 
Office and that the County and BCSO’s proposed use thereof is permitted upon the 
Leased Premises. 
 
 (b) QUIET ENJ OYMENT: The Town of warrants and covenants that, if 
BCSO shall perform all of the covenants and agreements as stipulated in this Lease to be 
performed on the part of the County and BCSO, the County and BCSO at all times 
during the Lease Term shall have the exclusive, peaceable and quiet enjoyment and 
possession of the Leased Premises without any manner of hindrance from anyone 
claiming by, through or under the Town. 
  
8 . SURRENDER OF LEASED PREMISES: 
 
 On or before the Expiration Date, or upon earlier termination of its interest in the 
Leased Premises as provided herein, the County and BCSO shall peaceably surrender 
possession of the Leased Premises to the Town with all improvements located therein, 
in good repair and in  the same condition in which delivered to the County and BCSO, 
ordinary wear and tear excepted, and the County and BCSO shall deliver to the Town all 
keys to the Leased Premises. Regardless of the foregoing, at any time prior to the 
expiration of the Lease Term, the County and BCSO may, at its cost and expense, 
remove in a careful manner any unattached trade fixtures, furniture and personal 
property placed within the Leased Premises by the County and BCSO during the Lease 
Term, and prior to such expiration shall repair any damage caused to the Leased 
Premises by such removal. All items not so removed shall, at the Town’s option, be 
deemed to have been abandoned by the County and BCSO and may be destroyed or 
otherwise disposed of by the Town without notice to the County and BCSO, and without 
any obligation to account for such items, or liability to the County and BCSO therefore. 
The provisions of this Article 8  of the Lease shall survive the expiration or termination 
of this Lease. 
 
9. TOWN’S RIGHT OF ENTRY: 
 
 The Town or its employees and agents may enter the Leased Premises at any 
mutually agreeable time for the purpose of inspecting or maintaining the Leased 
Premises. In the event of an emergency, however, the Town or its employees and agents 
may enter the Leased Premises without consent or agreement of the County and BCSO; 
provided, however, that the Town’s Right of Entry does not include the portion of the 
Leased Premises where the BCSO maintains and holds evidence for pending and 
ongoing investigations and prosecutions.  Keys for this purpose must be held by the 
Town or its agent, and in the event that the BCSO installs keypads, the BCSO must 
provide the Town key code to permit access.  In the event that the County and BCSO 



 

 

6 

desires to change or alter any locks to the Leased Premises, the County and BCSO will 
notify the Town of the County and BCSO’s request, and the Town or the Town’s agent 
will have the locks changed or altered at the County and BCSO’s expense. 
 
10 . UTILITIES: 
 
 (a) UTILITY CONNECTIONS. The Town shall at all times cause or make 
available to the Building for the use of the County and  BCSO, connections for adequate 
water, electric, gas, telephone and sewage. 
 
 (b) ARRANGEMENT AND PAYMENT FOR UTILITIES:  The County and 
BCSO shall arrange for the provision of all utilities to be furnished to the Leased 
Premises during the term of this Lease.  The County and BCSO shall pay for its own 
telephone, internet, janitorial, cable TV, water, sewage, garbage disposal and electricity 
services for the Leased Premises. The Town shall have no obligation to provide or pay 
for any utility service in connection with the Leased Premises. 
 
11. SIGNS: 
 
  The County and BCSO shall not erect any signs or advertisements on any exterior 
door, wall or window of the leased premises, building or the “On Premises” sign located 
near U. S. 278 without the prior written consent of the Town.  If the Town approves any 
such signage, all related costs for the installation and fabrication for the signage shall be 
the sole financial responsibility of the County and BCSO.  The County and BCSO agree 
to maintain such signs as approved by the Town in good condition and repair. Any such 
sign shall comply all requirements of any law, statute, ordinance, covenants, restrictions 
or otherwise, governing the use of the Leased Premises. 
 
12. CONTROL OF LEASED PREMISES: 
 
 (a) THE COUNTY AND BCSO’S EXCLUSIVE CONTROL:  The County and 
BCSO warrant and represent that during any Term of this Lease, the daily operations, 
use and occupancy of the Leased Premises shall be under the sole and exclusive control 
of the County and BCSO. 
 
 (b) COUNTY AND BCSO DUTY TO INSURE: The County and BCSO 
shall insure their equipment, furniture, fixtures, contents of any description and 
installations made pursuant to this Lease, at the expense of the County and BCSO. 
 
 (c) SURVIVAL: The warranty and representation set forth in this Article 12 
shall survive the expiration, cancellation or termination of this Lease. 
 
13. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION OF LEASED PREMISES: 
 



 

 
7 

 (a) DESTRUCTION OF LEASED PREMISES: In the event that the 
Leased Premises are destroyed, or that damage to the leased premises is so extensive 
that restoration or repairs cannot be accomplished within 90  days, as certified by the 
opinion of the Building Official of the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, then  
the County and BCSO or the Town may terminate this Lease by giving the other written 
notice before any restoration or repair is commenced, and in that event, any applicable 
insurance proceeds shall be paid to the Town. 
 
 (b) DAMAGE TO LEASED PREMISES: In the event of an insured loss 
and subject to the termination provisions set forth herein, the Town shall repair or 
restore the Building to as good a condition as existed before such damage occurred, to 
the extent of any available insurance proceeds. Should the Town provide the County and 
BCSO with the opinion of an experienced insurance adjuster that such insurance 
proceeds will not be sufficient to pay for such repairs or restoration, then the Town or 
the County and BCSO may terminate this Lease by written notice, in  which event all 
insurance proceeds will be paid to the Town. 
 
 (c) RENT ABATEMENT DURING REPAIR:  During the period of any 
restoration or repairs which permits partial occupancy of the Leased Premises, the Rent 
shall be pro rated, based upon the percentage of the usable portion of the Leased 
Premises to the non-usable portion of the Leased Premises. In the event of destruction 
of the Leased Premises, or damage that is so extensive as to render the leased premises 
unfit for occupancy by the County and BCSO, the Rent shall abate until such time as the 
restoration or repair of the Leased Premises has proceeded to the point that the 
occupancy and use of the Leased Premises is permitted by the Building Official of The 
Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina. 
 
14. EMINENT DOMAIN: 
 
 (a) TERMINATION OF LEASE: If any portion of the Leased Premises is 
taken for any public or quasi-public use under any governmental law, ordinance or 
regulation, or by right of eminent domain, or by private purchase under threat or 
initiation of exercise of the right of eminent domain, this Lease shall terminate upon the 
election of either Party, effective on the date possession of the Leased Premises, or any 
portion thereof, is taken by the condemning authority or private purchaser as aforesaid. 
In the case of such partial condemnation and an election by the Parties hereto not to 
terminate this Lease, then the Rent payable hereunder shall, during the unexpired 
portion of the Lease, shall be pro-rated, based upon percentage of square feet of the 
Leased Premises so taken, of the whole of the Leased Premises stated in this Lease. The 
Town shall promptly provide the County and BCSO a copy of any and all notices from 
any such condemning authority, or private purchaser as mentioned above, respecting 
any requirement that the Town surrendered its right to all or any portion of the Leased 
Premises pursuant to this Article 14 (a). 
 



 

 

8 

 (b) NOTICE OF ELECTION: Any notice of election by the County and BCSO 
to terminate this Lease as provided in this Article 14 shall be given by the County and 
BCSO to the Town within 30  days after written notice by the Town to the County and 
BCSO as provided in Article 14 (a) above, or within 30  days after receipt by BCSO of 
actual knowledge of any requirement that the Town surrendered its right to possession 
to all or any part of the Leased Premises, whichever shall first occur. In the event this 
lease is not terminated pursuant to this article 14, after a taking of a portion of the 
leased premises, the Town shall make such reasonable repairs or alterations as may be 
necessary to make the structure of the leased premises and architectural whole, and this 
lease shall thereafter be in full force and effect, as provided herein. 
 (c) CONDEMNATION AWARD: Any payment or award from the 
condemning authority shall be the property of the Town. 
 
15. SUBLETTING PROHIBITED:  
 
 BCSO shall not sublet any portion of the Leased Premises, or assign or otherwise 
transfer any of its rights under this lease, in whole or in part, to any third party without 
the prior written consent of the Town.  Any and all documents utilized by the County 
and BCSO to evidence any subletting or assignment to which the Town has consented 
shall be subject to prior written approval by the Town and its counsel. 
 
16. DEFAULT OF COUNTY AND BCSO: 
 
 Occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a Default under the Terms of 
this Lease: 
 
 (a) FAILURE TO PAY RENT OR MONEY DUE: If  the County and BCSO 
shall fail to pay any payment of Rent, or any other sum of money due and payable under 
this Lease, whether to the Town or otherwise, when due and payable, and such failure 
shall continues for a period of Ten (10) days from the due date thereof; 
 
 (b) VIOLATION OF LEASE: If the County and BCSO shall violate any term 
of this Lease, or fail to perform any term, condition, covenant, obligation or agreement 
to be performed or observed by the County and BCSO under this Lease, and such failure 
shall continue for a period of Thirty (30) days after the delivery of written notice 
thereof; 
 
 (c) ABANDONMENT OF LEASED PREMISES: If the County and BCSO 
shall desert, vacate or not regularly use the Leased Premises for a period of 30  days or 
more, even though the County and BCSO continue to timely pay all Rent payments 
when due; 
 (d) INSOLVENCY: Any of the following occur with respect to the County 
and BCSO: (i) the County and BCSO become insolvent as such term is defined in the 
United States bankruptcy code or under the insolvency laws of any state, district, 



 

 
9 

commonwealth or territory of the United States; (ii) the appointment of a receiver or 
custodian of any or all of BCSO’s property or assets or the institution of a foreclosure 
action upon any of the County and BCSO’s real or personal property as pertains to the 
Leased Premises and such receiver or custodian or such foreclosure action is not 
dismissed within 60  days; (iii)  the County and BCSO’s filing or consenting in writing to 
any petition under the provisions of the United States Bankruptcy code, or the 
insolvency laws of any State, district, commonwealth or territory of the United States; 
(iv) the filing of a petition against the County and BCSO as the subject debtor under the 
United States bankruptcy code, or any insolvency laws of any state, district, 
commonwealth or territory of the United States, and which results in an order of relief 
in favor of the County and BCSO; (v) the County and BCSO’s making or consenting, 
whether in writing or not, to a voluntary assignment for the benefit of creditors or a 
common-law composition of creditors; (vi) a court order dissolution of the County and 
BCSO or court ordered liquidation of substantially all of the County and BCSO’s assets; 
 
 (e) FAILURE TO BUDGET FOR RENT: If BCSO shall fail to include 
amounts sufficient to pay Rent and any other amounts due under this Lease for any 
fiscal year during the Term of this Lease in its budget, or if the County shall fail to 
approve any budget for the BCSO that include amounts sufficient to pay Rent and any 
other amounts due under this Lease for any fiscal year during the Term of this Lease. 
 
 (f) DISSOLUTION: The dissolution of the County and BCSO for any 
reason; or, 
 
 (g) WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS: Any of the representations 
or warranties of BCSO as set forth in this Lease are or become untrue or incorrect in any 
material respect during the term of this Lease. 
 
17. DEFAULT OF THE TOWN: 
 
 Occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a Default under the Terms of 
this Lease:  
 
 (a) If the Town should fail to perform or observe any of the conditions or 
terms of this Lease, and such failure to perform or observe shall continue for a period of 
Thirty (30) days after written notice to the Town by  the County and BCSO of such. 
 
18. RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES ON DEFAULT: 
 
 (a) ALL REMEDIES PRESERVED: Upon Default of the other Party, the 
Town or the County and BCSO, as the case may be, shall be entitled to pursue any 
remedy at law or in equity available to it. 
 



 

 

10 

 (b) ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS:If any legal action or other proceeding is 
brought for the enforcement of this Lease, or because of a dispute, breach, default or 
misrepresentation in connection with all or any of the provisions of this Lease, the 
successful or prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees 
and any costs incurred as a result of any such legal action or other proceeding, whether 
incurred before the institution of suit or after the commencement of suit, including 
appellate proceedings, in addition to any other relief to which the prevailing party may 
be entitled. 
 
19. INTERPRETATION: 
 
  The County and BCSO acknowledge that the County and BCSO have reviewed 
and agreed to all of the terms and provisions of this Lease and that the County and 
BCSO have had a full opportunity to consult with an attorney of the County and BCSO’s 
choosing concerning the legal consequences of entering into this Lease with the Town.  
As a result of the foregoing, it is the intent of the Parties hereto that this lease shall not 
be construed or interpreted against either Party in any dispute concerning any term or 
provision of this Lease. 
 
20 . NO WAIVER: 
 
 The Town’s acceptance of any payment of Rent following any default by the 
County and BCSO shall not waive the Town’s rights regarding such a default.  No waiver 
by the Town of any violation or breach of any of the terms contained in this Lease shall 
waive the Town’s rights regarding any future violation of such term, or any violation of 
any other term contained within this Lease. The Town’s acceptance of any partial 
payment of Rent shall waive the Town’s rights with regard to the remaining portion of 
the Rent regardless of any endorsement or other statement on any instrument delivered 
in payment of Rent, or any writing delivered to the Town in connection therewith.  
Accordingly, the Town’s acceptance of any partial payment as required by this Lease 
shall not constitute an accord and satisfaction with respect to the full amount of any 
such payment. 
 
21. MECHANIC’S OR OTHER LIENS: 
 
  The County and BCSO shall have no power to subject the Leased Premises or the 
Town’s interest in the Leased Premises to any mechanic’s or any other lien. If any 
mechanic’s or any other lien or order for the payment of money shall be filed against the 
Leased Premises by reason of or arising out of any labor or material furnished or alleged 
to have been furnished or to be furnished to or on behalf of the County and BCSO at the 
Leased Premises, or for or by reason of any change, alteration, or addition or the cost or 
expense thereof or any contract relating thereto, the County and BCSO shall cause the 
same to be discharged of record against the Leased Premises by bond or otherwise as 
allowed by law at the sole expense of the County and BCSO, within Thirty (30) days after 



 

 
11 

written demand therefor by the Town, and shall also defend on behalf of the Town at the 
County and BCSO’s sole cost and expense, any action, suit or proceeding that may be 
brought thereon or for the enforcement of any such lien or order, and the County and 
BCSO shall save the Town harmless from any judgment, claim or damage resulting 
therefrom. 
 
22. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES: 
 
  The County and BCSO agree that at any time and from time to time upon not less 
than Ten (10) days prior written request by the Town, to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver to the Town a statement in writing certifying that this Lease is unmodified and is 
in full force and effect (or if there have been modifications that this Lease is in full force 
and effect as modified and stating the modifications), and the dates to which the Rent 
and other charges have been paid in advance, if any, it being intended that any such 
statement delivered pursuant to this Article 22 may be relied on by any prospective 
purchaser or purchasers of the Town’s interest in the Building or the Leased Premises. 
 
23. WAIVER OF J URY TRIAL: 
 
 TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE TOWN AND THE COUNTY AND 
BCSO EACH AGREED TO WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY J URY IN ANY 
LITIGATION ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LEASE, OR TO HAVE A J URY 
PARTICIPATE IN RESOLVING ANY DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF OR WITH RESPECT 
TO THIS LEASE OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENT, DOCUMENT OR AGREEMENT 
EXECUTED OR DELIVERED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, OR THE 
TRANSACTIONS RELATED HERETO. 
 
24. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: 
 
 (a) HAZARDOUS MATERIALS PROHIBITED: The County and BCSO 
shall not cause or permit any hazardous materials to be brought upon, kept or used in or 
about the Leased Premises (other than in the ordinary course of the County and BCSO’s 
Permitted Use, and then only in compliance with any and all applicable laws) without 
the prior written consent of the Town, which consent may be withheld by the Town for 
any reason. “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any substance, material or waste which is 
now or hereafter classified were considered to be hazardous, toxic, or dangerous, under 
any law or regulation relating to pollution or the protection or regulation of human 
health, natural resources or the environment, or which opposes or threatens to pose a 
hazard to the health or safety of any person on or about the Leased Premises, or the 
Building. 
 
 (b) TOWN”S RIGHTS: If the County and BCSO breaches its obligations 
under this Article 24, the Town may, but is not obligated to, immediately take, at the 
County and BCSO’s expense, any and all action reasonably appropriate to remedy the 



 

 

12 

same, including taking any appropriate action to clean up or remediate any 
contamination resulting from the County and BCSO’s use, generation, storage or 
disposal of any Hazardous Materials. 
 (c) INDEMNIFICATION: The County and BCSO shall indemnify the 
Town and pay the cost of any cleanup or  remediation and shall defend the Town, and 
hold the Town harmless from any claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines or losses 
which arise during or after the Term of this Lease from or in connection with the 
presence or suspected presence of any Hazardous Materials in, on or under the Leased 
Premises, or within the Building, which Hazardous Materials were brought upon, kept 
or used in or about the Leased Premises or the Building, by the County and BCSO. This 
indemnity provision shall survive the termination or expiration of this Lease. 
 
 (d) SURVIVAL: The obligations of the County and BCSO set forth in this 
Article 24 shall survive the expiration, cancellation or termination of this Lease. 
 
25. MISCELLANEOUS: 
 
 (a) BINDING EFFECT: This Lease shall inure to the benefit of and shall be 
binding upon the Town, the County and BCSO and their respective successors and 
assigns, if any are permitted hereunder. 
 
 (b) ENTIRE AGREEMENT/ AMENDMENT AND MODIFICATIONS: This 
Lease supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the Parties with respect 
to the Leased Premises and all other matters contained herein and constitutes the sole 
and entire agreement and understanding between the Town, the County and BCSO with 
respect to the Lease of the Leased Premises.  This Lease shall not be modified or 
amended except by an instrument in writing signed by both the Town, the County and 
BCSO.  
 
 (c) SEVERABILITY:  In the event that any provision of this Lease  shall be 
held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall 
not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 
 (d) EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS:  This Lease may be simultaneously 
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall 
constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
 (e) APPLICABLE LAW: This Lease shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina. 
 
 (f) CAPTIONS: The captions or headings herein are for convenience only 
and in  no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or Articles of 
this Lease. 
 
 (g) RECORDING PROHIBITED: The parties hereto may not record this 



 

 
13 

Lease in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Beaufort County, South Carolina. 
 
 (h) PLURAL/ SINGULAR: Where appropriate, the use of the singular 
herein shall include and be deemed to be the plural, and the use of the plural herein 
shall be deemed to include the singular. 
 
 (i) NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: The Parties hereto affirmatively 
represent that this Lease is made solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto and their 
respective successors and assigns and not for the benefit of any third party who is not a 
signature party hereto.  No party other than the signature parties and their respective 
successors and assigns hereto shall have any enforceable rights hereunder, or have any 
right to the enforcement hereof, or any claim for damages as a result of any alleged 
breach hereof. 
 
 (j) NOTICES: All notices, applications, requests, certificates or other 
communications hereunder shall be sufficiently  given and shall be deemed given when 
delivered in person, or mailed by regular first class mail, postage prepaid (in such case, 
delivery shall be deemed complete upon mailing), addressed as follows, or to such other 
place as may be designated in writing by the Parties: 
 

To the Town:  THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 
   Stephen G. Riley, Town Manager 
   One Town Center Court 
   Hilton Head Island,  SC  29928 
 
With Copy to: Gregory M. Alford, Esq. 
   Alford and Thoreson, L. L. C. 
   Post Office Drawer 8008 
   Hilton Head Island, SC 29938-8008 
 
To the County: BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
   Gary Kubic, Manager 
   Post Office Drawer 1228 
   Beaufort, SC, 29901 
   
To BCSO:  BEAUFORT COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
   Honorable P. J . Tanner 
   Post Office Box 1758 
   Beaufort, SC 29901 
 
With Copy to: COUNTY ATTORNEY 
   J oshua A. Gruber, Esq. 
   Post Office Drawer 1228 
   Beaufort, SC 29901 



 

 

14 

  
 (j) SURVIVAL: The obligations of the County and BCSO set forth in this 
Lease shall survive the expiration, cancellation or termination of this Lease, whether or 
not expressly stated with respect to any specific obligation. 
 
 (k) FURTHER ASSURANCES AND CORRECTIVE DOCUMENTS:     The 
Town and BCSO agree to do, execute, acknowledge, deliver or cause to be done all such 
further acts as may be reasonably determined to be necessary to carry out this Lease and 
give effect hereto.  The Town, the County and BCSO agree that each shall, upon request, 
execute and deliver such other or corrective documents as may be reasonably 
determined to be necessary, either before or after the execution delivery of this Lease.  
The obligations of this Article 26(l) shall survive the expiration, cancellation or 
termination of this Lease. 
 
 
 
 

(Sign ature s  Appe ar On  Fo llo w in g Page )  



 

 
15 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, and 
Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office, have, or have caused their duly authorized officers and 

representatives to execute this Lease as of the date and year first above written. 
 

 

W ITNESSES:    TH E TOW N OF H ILTON H EAD ISLAND,  

      SOUTH  CAROLINA 

 

 

 

      By:       

                  David Be n n e tt, Mayo r 

 

 

 

      Atte s t:      

         Ste phe n  G. Rile y, ICMA-CM 

         To w n  Man age r 

 

 

W ITNESSES:    BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH  CAROLINA 

 

 

      

      By:         

       D. Pau l So m m e rville , Chairm an  

 

 

      Atte s t:      

         Gary Kubic, Adm in is trato r 

 

 

W ITNESSES:    BEAUFORT COUNTY SH ERIFF’S OFFICE 

 

 

      

      By:         

       P. J . Tan n e r 

 

 

      



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Stephen G. Riley, ICMA~CM, Town Manager 
VIA: Teri B. Lewis, AICP, LMO Official 
FROM: Anne Cyran, AICP, Senior Planner 
CC: Charles Cousins, AICP, Community Development Director 
DATE: January 7, 2014 
SUBJECT: Proposed Ordinance No. 2015-04 – Second Reading 

Amending the Land Management Ordinance of the Town of Hilton Head Island’s 
Official Zoning Map and the Hilton Head Plantation Master Plan 

 
 
Town Council made no changes to Proposed Ordinance No. 2015-04 as a result of the first reading 
of the ordinance on January 6, 2015. 

TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

Community Development Department 
 



AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-                 PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 2015-04 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 16, THE LAND MANAGEMENT 

ORDINANCE, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE TOWN OF HILTON 

HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, BY AMENDING SECTION 16-1-107, 

THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND THE HILTON HEAD PLANTATION 

MASTER PLAN WITH RESPECT TO THE CERTAIN PARCELS 

IDENTIFIED AS PARCELS 89A, 121, 126, 127 AND 128 ON BEAUFORT 

COUNTY TAX DISTRICT R510 MAP 3, WITHIN THE HILTON HEAD 

PLANTATION MASTER PLAN UNDER THE PD-1 ZONING DISTRICT,  BY 

CHANGING THE ALLOWED USE FROM COMMERCIAL TO GROUP 

LIVING, AND BY INCREASING THE ALLOWED DENSITY ON PARCELS 

89A, 127, AND 128 FROM 10,283 SQUARE FEET TO 126 DWELLING UNITS, 

AND BY INCREASING THE ALLOWED DENSITY ON PARCELS 121 AND 

126 FROM ZERO TO 26 DWELLING UNITS OR A 50,000 SQUARE FOOT 

ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY, AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, on October 7, 2014, the Town Council did amend Title 16 of the Municipal 
Code of the Town of Hilton Head Island by enacting a new Land Management Ordinance (the 
“LMO”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council now finds that, upon further review of application ZA-
1685-2014, it is in the public interest that the subject 10.6 acre parcels be rezoned to change the 
allowed use from commercial to group living, and to increase the density on parcels 89A, 127, and 
128 from 10,283 square feet to 126 dwelling units, and to increase the density on parcels 121 and 
126 from zero to 26 dwelling units or a 50,000 square foot assisted living facility; and 

 
 WHEREAS, this zoning change would be compatible with surrounding land uses and 
neighborhood character, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare, and, 
further, would be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is authorized by Town Council to hold a public 
hearing on said zoning map amendment application, and the Planning Commission held a public 
hearing on November 19, 2014, at which time a presentation was made by staff and an opportunity 
was given for the public to comment on the rezoning request; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after consideration of the staff report, public 
comments, and the criteria set forth in Section 16-2-103.C of the LMO, voted to recommend to 
Town Council that the rezoning request be approved, finding that the application is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and serves to carry out the purposes of the Land Management Ordinance; 
and 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED BY THE TOWN 

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SC; AND IT IS ORDAINED BY 

SAID AUTHORITY OF THE SAID COUNCIL: 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-                 PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 2015-04 
Page 2 

Section 1.  Amendment.     That the Official Zoning Map of the Town of Hilton Head Island, as 
referenced in Section 16-1-107 of the Land Management Ordinance, be hereby amended to modify 
the 10.6 acres identified as parcels 89A, 121, 126, 127, and 128 on Beaufort County District 
R510 Tax Map 3 be rezoned to change the allowed use from commercial to group living, and to 
increase the density on parcels 89A, 127, and 128 from 10,283 square feet to 126 dwelling units, 
and to increase the density on parcels 121 and 126 from zero to 26 dwelling units or a 50,000 square 
foot assisted living facility. 

 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be 
deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Town 
Council of the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina. 
 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF 

HILTON HEAD ISLAND ON THIS   _DAY OF   _____ 2015. 
 
  

THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD 
ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA  

 
 

 _____________________________ 

 David Bennett, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Victoria L. Pfannenschmidt, Town Clerk 
 
 

 
Public Hearing: November 19, 2014  
First Reading:   
Second Reading:    
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Gregory M. Alford, Town Attorney  
 
 
Introduced by Council Member: __________________________ 



TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

Community Development Department 
 

 

 

 
 

TO:  Stephen G. Riley, ICMA – CM, Town Manager 
 

FROM: Charles F. Cousins, AICP, Community Development Director  
 

DATE: January 8, 2015 
 

SUBJECT: Lease with Drydock Enterprises, LTD. 
 

 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends Town Council execute a lease through September 30, 

2015 with Drydock Enterprises, LTD for the space it currently occupies in the Sapelo Building. 

 

Summary:  In October 2014 the Town acquired a 5.1 acre tract of land occupied by two office 

buildings; the Carolina and the Sapelo buildings.  These buildings had numerous tenants with 

month to month leases.  The intent of this land purchase was to demolish the buildings to make 

room for a new University of South Carolina at Beaufort hospitality facility.  One of the tenants, 

the Drydock Restaurant has requested that they be allowed to remain in their site through 

September 2015.  The proposed new lease would carry forward the major parameters of their 

existing lease but give them some assurance they can stay in place through the tourist season of 

2015. 

 

Background:  The Town has been discussing for quite a while the possibility of locating 

facilities associated with the University of South Carolina at Beaufort’s hospitality program 

within the Town.  In December 2013 the Town identified several parcels of land on Office Park 

Road to serve as the site for this facility.  Since that time the Town has either acquired or has 

under contract all the parcels necessary for this project.  All of these newly acquired parcels 

have buildings on them that will have to be demolished to create the USCB facility.   The 

Kiawah, Carolina and Sapelo buildings located on these parcels have numerous tenants that 

have month to month leases.  These buildings have a lot of age on them which results in 

ongoing maintenance issues.  To minimize the Town’s maintenance costs, demolition of these 

buildings needs to occur as soon as possible while still giving tenants time to relocate.  

Therefore, the tenants were informed that they would have to vacate their units by April 2015.  

This would allow the Town sufficient time to deal with any tenants that fail to meet this 

deadline and to begin the initial steps for demolition in late 2015. 

 

One of the tenants in the Sapelo building is the Drydock Restaurant.  They approached the 

Town about the possibility of remaining in their unit through the 2015 tourist season.  Staff 

believes that this would not cause problems with the proposed demolition schedule as long as 

there are proper assurances in place to make sure they vacate no later than September 30, 2015.  

In asking for a lease through September 2015, they agreed to sanctions and penalties that 

provide assurances they will vacate their space in a timely manner. Similar sanctions and 

penalties do not exist in the current leases for tenants in these buildings.  The terms of their new 

lease are essentially the same as those of their current month to month lease with the lease rate 

remaining at $3,377 per month. 

  



 1 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NUMBER 2015-01  ORDINANCE NUMBER 2015-___ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD 

ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LEASE 

WITH THE DRYDOCK ENTERPRISES, LTD. D/B/A THE DRYDOCK, PURSUANT TO 

THE AUTHORITY OF S.C. CODE ANN.  § 5-7-40 (SUPP. 2011), AND § 2-7-20, CODE 

OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, (1983); AND 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 

LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS 

 

 WHEREAS, on October 27, 2014, the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina (the 

“Town”) took ownership of certain real property generally known as the Sapelo Building, 

located on Hilton Head Island, South Carolina and located within/upon property known as 

Beaufort County Tax Map # R552-015-000-0154-0000; and 

 WHEREAS, prior to October 27, 2014, The Drydock Enterprises, Ltd. d/b/a The 

Drydock (“The Drydock”) entered into that certain Commercial Space Lease with Glover Real 

Estate, LLC, dated August 11, 2009, for leasing a portion of the Sapelo Building from the then-

current owner of the Building; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town and The Drydock desire to terminate the existing lease between 

The Drydock and Glover Real Estate, LLC, and execute a new lease between the Town and The 

Drydock; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council for the Town has determined that the proposed Lease 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is in the best interests of the citizens, residents and visitors on 

Hilton Head Island; and 

 WHEREAS, under the provisions of S.C. Code Ann. § 5-7-40 (SUPP. 2011) and § 2-7-

20, Code of the Town of Hilton Head Island , South Carolina, (1983), the conveyance or granting 

of an interest in real property owned by the Town of Hilton Head Island must be authorized by 

Ordinance. 



 2 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED BY THE TOWN 

COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, AND 

IT IS ORDAINED BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE SAID COUNCIL, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1. Execution of Lease. 

(a) The Mayor and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the 

Lease in a substantially similar form to that attached hereto as Exhibit "A" for the 

lease of Town-owned real property to The Drydock Enterprises, Ltd. d/b/a The 

Drydock; and  

(b) The Mayor and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to take such other and 

further actions as may be necessary to complete the transactions contemplated in the 

Amendment as authorized hereby.   

Section 2. Severability.   

If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held or 

deemed to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then such 

section, phrase, sentence or portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 

provision and shall not affect the remaining portion thereof.   

Section 3. Effective Date.   

 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption thereof by the Town Council for 

the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina.   

  

 

 

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 

 



 3 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN 

OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, ON THIS ___ DAY OF 

_______________________, 2015. 

 

 

       ___________________________________  
        David Bennett, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Victoria L. Pfannenschmidt, Town Clerk 
 
First Reading:   _____________________  
 
Second Reading:_____________________     
 
 
Approved as to form: ______________________________ 
   Gregory M. Alford, Town Attorney 
 
 
Introduced by Council Member:______________________ 



EXHIBIT “A” 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LEASE OF SUITES 101 AND 105 OF THE SAPELO BUILDING 

BY AND BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, 

AND 

THE DRYDOCK ENTERPRISES, LTD. D/B/A THE DRYDOCK 

 

 

 

DATED THIS ______ DAY OF _______________, 20___ 

  



Page 1 of 12 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT 

) 
) 
) 

 
LEASE 

 
  

This Lease (hereinafter, “Lease”), is made and entered into on this ____ day of 

_______________________, 20___, between the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina 

(hereinafter, “Lessor”), and The Drydock Enterprises, Ltd. d/b/a The Drydock (hereinafter, “Lessee”). 

 For and in consideration of the Rent to be paid by the Lessee hereunder, and the full and faithful 

performance of the following terms and conditions, the Lessor and the Lessee (hereinafter collectively 

referred to as the “Parties”), hereto mutually understand and agree as follows: 

1. LEASED PREMISES: The Lessor hereby leases to the Lessee, and the Lessee hereby leases 

from the Lessor, the following property, which Lessee accepts in its current AS-IS condition: 

Suite 101 and Suite 105 of the Carolina Building located at 21 Office Park Road, Hilton 

Head Island, Beaufort County, South Carolina. 

 (hereinafter referred to as the “Leased Premises”) 

2. TERM: 

 (a) Lessee shall have and hold the Leased Premises for a term (hereinafter, the “Lease 

Term”) beginning on the 1st day of November, 2014 (hereinafter, the “Commencement Date”), and 

ending at midnight on the 30th day of September, 2015 (hereinafter, the “Expiration Date”).   

 (b) Lessee’s entry into, and taking possession of, the Leased Premises shall constitute as of 

the beginning of the Lease Term. 

 (c) If the Lessor is unable to deliver possession of the Leased Premises upon the 

Commencement Date, then neither the Lessor nor its agents shall be liable for any damages caused to the 

Lessee by reason of the delay, nor shall this Lease become void or voidable; however, except as otherwise 

expressly provided, Lessee shall not be liable for the payment of Rent until the Lessor delivers possession 

of the Leased Premises. 

 (d) There shall be no renewal term(s) of this Lease, and the Lease shall be deemed 

automatically terminated on the Expiration Date, with no further action required of Lessor or Lessee to 

terminate this Lease. 

3. RENT: 

(a) BASE RENT: Rent shall be paid in the amount of Three Thousand Three Hundred 

Seventy-Seven and 00/100 Dollars ($3,377.00) per month.  The Rent shall be payable in equal monthly 

payments beginning on the Commencement Date, and thereafter on the first (1st) day of every month 

throughout the entire Lease Term. 



Page 2 of 12 
 

(b) SECURITY DEPOSIT: Lessee has deposited with Lessor the sum of Three Thousand 

and 00/100 Dollars ($3,000.00) as security for the full and faithful performance of every provision of this 

Lease to be performed by Lessee.  If Lessee defaults with respect to any provision of this Lease, including 

but not limited to the provisions relating to payment of rent, Lessor may use, apply or retain the Security 

Deposit against all or any other sum in default, or for the payment of any other amount which Lessor may 

spend or become obligated to spend by reason of Lessee’s default.  If any portion of the Security Deposit 

is so used or applied, Lessee shall, within five (5) days after written demand, deposit cash with Lessor in 

an amount sufficient to restore the Security Deposit to its original amount.  Lessor shall not be required to 

keep the Security Deposit separate from its general funds and Lessee shall not be entitled to interest on 

such deposit.  If Lessee shall fully and faithfully perform each provision of this Lease to be performed by 

Lessee, the Security Deposit or any balance thereof shall be returned to Lessee at the expiration of the 

Lease term and upon Lessee’s vacating the premises. 

4. USE AND COMPLIANCE: 

 (a) PERMITTED USE: The Lessee shall continuously occupy and use the Leased 

Premises for restaurant and related and ancillary uses, unless the written consent of the Lessor is first 

obtained for any other use.  The Leased Premises shall not be used for any use other than the Permitted 

Use, or which is disreputable, creates extraordinary fire hazards, results in an increased rate of insurance 

on the Leased Premises, or the contents therein, or for the storage of any Hazardous Materials as defined 

herein (other than those which might be used in the ordinary course of the Lessee’s Permitted Use, and 

then only in compliance with all applicable laws related thereto). 

 (b) COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS: The Lessee 

shall comply with all applicable statutes, ordinances, rules, covenants, restrictions, and regulations 

relating to the use, condition, access to, and occupancy of the Leased Premises and shall maintain the 

Leased Premises free of trash, litter, and debris, and in a clean and sightly condition. 

 (c) It is agreed between the parties that there shall be no live entertainment on or within the 

leased premises prior to 6:00 p.m. each day, and no later than 11:00 p.m. each day. 

 (d) Lessee agrees to faithfully observe and strictly comply with rules and regulations as 

stated in the attached Exhibit “A”, and which are incorporated herein. 

5. LESSOR’S DUTY TO REPAIR: 

 (a) Lessor shall keep and maintain the Leased Premises in good order, condition, and repair 

(including any replacement and restoration as is required for that purpose), and every part thereof and any 

and all appurtenances thereto wherever located, including, without limitation:  the foundation, exterior 

walls and roof of the building in which the Leased Premises are located and the structural portions of the 

Leased Premises; the exterior and interior portion of all doors and plate glass; all plumbing and sewage 

facilities within the Leased Premises, including the free flow of and to the main sewer line; fixtures; 

heating and air-conditioning and electrical systems serving the Leased Premises exclusively; sprinkler 

systems; and wall, floor, and ceilings applicable to or within the Leased Premises. 

(b) Lessee shall not make any alteration of, or addition or improvement to, the Leased 

Premises without securing the Lessor’s prior written consent.  Any and all roof penetrations must first be 



Page 3 of 12 
 

approved by and coordinated through the Lessor, in order not to void any warranties on any roof 

coverings.  Lessee shall save the Lessor harmless on account of claims for mechanics or materialmen’s 

liens, or any other lien, in connection with any work performed by the Lessee, and any such liens shall 

exist only against the Lessee’s leasehold interest and shall be discharged, by bond or otherwise, within 

thirty (30) days of filing and service of thereof.  Lessee shall keep and maintain the Leased Premises in 

accordance with all directions, rules, and regulations of the proper officials of any government or other 

agency having jurisdiction over the Leased Premises, and Lessee shall comply with all requirements of 

law, statute, ordinance, covenants, restrictions or otherwise, governing the use of the Leased Premises and 

all appurtenances thereto. 

(c) Notwithstanding provisions set forth elsewhere in this Lease, the provisions set forth in 

Article IV of the lease attached hereto as Exhibit “B” shall be applicable and are incorporated herein. 

6. LESSOR REPRESENTATIONS: 

 (a) ZONING: The Lessor hereby warrants and represents that the Leased Premises are 

properly zoned for the Lessee’s Permitted Use(s) and that the Lessee’s Permitted Use(s) thereof is 

permitted upon the Leased Premises. 

 (b) QUIET ENJOYMENT: The Lessor warrants and covenants that if Lessee shall perform 

all of the covenants and agreements as stipulated in this Lease to be performed on the part of the Lessee, 

the Lessee at all times during the Lease Term shall have exclusive, peaceable, and quiet enjoyment and 

possession of the Leased Premises without any manner of hindrance from anyone claiming by, through, 

or under the Lessor. 

7. SURRENDER OF LEASED PREMISES: 

(a) GENERALLY:  On or before the Expiration Date, or upon earlier termination of 

its interest in the Leased Premises as provided herein, the Lessee shall peaceably surrender possession of 

the Leased Premises to the Lessor with all improvements located therein, in good repair and in the same 

condition in which delivered to the Lessee, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and the Lessee shall deliver 

to the Lessor all keys relating to the Leased Premises.  Regardless of the foregoing, at any time prior to 

the expiration of the Lease Term, the Lessee may, at its cost and expense, remove in a careful manner any 

unattached trade fixtures, furniture, and personal property placed within the Leased Premises by the 

Lessee during the Lease Term, and prior to such expiration shall repair any damage caused to the Leased 

Premises by such removal.  All items not so removed shall, at the Lessor’s option, be deemed to have 

been abandoned by the Lessee and may be destroyed or otherwise disposed of by the Lessor without 

notice to the Lessee, and without any obligation to account for such items, or liability to the Lessee 

therefore.  The provisions of this Article of the Lease shall survive the expiration or termination of this 

Lease. 

(b) In the event Lessee does not surrender possession of the Leased Premises on or before the 

Expiration Date in accordance with Article 7(a) above, Lessor may immediately proceed to have Lessee 

removed (through all legal means) from the Leased Premises, without providing advance notice of any 

kind to Lessee.  Further, in such event, Lessee shall pay to Lessor, for each day held over beyond the 

Expiration Date of this Lease, Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($500.00) as liquidated damages.  The 



Page 4 of 12 
 

Lessor and Lessee acknowledge and agree this Article 7(b) shall not be deemed in any manner to be a 

penalty clause and Lessor is relying on this Article 7(b) in the execution of this Lease. 

8. MORTGAGE/SUBORDINATION/ASSIGNMENT: 

 (a) The Lessor shall have the right to assign or convey its interest in the Leased Premises 

and/or the Building at any time and Lessor thereafter shall have no further liability or obligations under 

this Lease.  The Lessor shall have the right to mortgage the Leased Premises or any portion of the 

property upon which the Leased Premises is/are situated and any such mortgage shall have priority over 

and this Lease shall be subordinate to such mortgage, except and provided that the rights of the Lessee 

shall not be cut off or affected in any manner by foreclosure of any mortgage so long as the Lessee is not 

in default as to any obligation as to which the Lessee has received written notice.  Lessee agrees to 

execute any attornment or subordination agreements reasonably requested by the owner of such a 

mortgage evidencing the priority of the mortgage.  Lessee hereby appoints the Lessor as its attorney-in-

fact to execute any attornment or subordination agreement on its behalf.  The appointment as attorney-in-

fact is coupled with an interest, and may not be revoked by the Lessee during the term of this Lease and 

any extension thereof.  Lessee acknowledges that Lessor may assign its interest in this Lease to a 

mortgagee lender as additional security. 

 (b)  Except as set forth herein, Lessee shall not assign, transfer, mortgage or otherwise 

encumber this Lease or all or substantially all or any of Lessee’s rights hereunder or interest herein 

without obtaining the prior written consent of Lessor, which may be withheld or conditioned for any 

reason in Lessor’s sole discretion. 

9. LESSOR’S RIGHT OF ENTRY: Lessor or its employees/agents may enter the Leased 

Premises at any mutually agreeable time for the purpose of inspecting or maintaining the Leased 

Premises.  In the event of an emergency, however, the Lessor or its employees/agents may enter the 

Leased Premises without consent or agreement of the Lessee.  Any keys for this purpose must be held by 

the Lessor or its employees/agents.  In the event that the Lessee desires to change or alter any locks to or 

within the Leased Premises, the Lessee will notify the Lessor of the Lessee’s request, and the Lessor or 

the Lessor’s employee(s)/agent(s) will have the locks changed or altered at the Lessee’s expense. 

10. UTILITIES: Lessor shall at all times cause or make available to the Leased Premises for the 

use of the Lessee, connections for adequate water, electric, gas, telephone, and sewage to the building.  

Notwithstanding provisions set forth elsewhere in this Lease, the provisions set forth in Article VII of the 

lease attached hereto as Exhibit “B” shall be applicable and are incorporated herein 

11. SIGNS: Lessee shall not erect any signs or advertisements on any exterior door, wall or window 

of the Leased Premises or building without the prior written consent of Lessor.  If the Lessor approves 

any such signage, all related costs for the installation and fabrication for the signage shall be the sole 

financial responsibility of the Lessee.  The Lessee agrees to maintain such signs as approved by the 

Lessor in good condition and repair.  Any such sign shall otherwise comply all requirements of any law, 

statute, ordinance, covenants, restrictions, or otherwise, governing the use of the Leased Premises. 

 

 



Page 5 of 12 
 

12. INSURANCE OBLIGATIONS: 

 (a) Lessee shall, at its expense, procure and keep in force at all times during the Lease Term, 

insurance written by an insurer satisfactory to Lessor, insuring the lessor and Lessee against all loss, cost, 

liability and expense on account of injury to or death of a person or persons, or damage to or destruction 

of property of third parties, arising from Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Leased Premises, in an amount 

not less than One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for injury to or death of any one person, and 

Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) for injury to or death of more than one person in any one 

accident, and not less than One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for damage to property of third 

parties.  All policies of insurance required of Lessee shall be:  (i) written as primary policy coverage and 

not contributing with or in excess of any coverage with Lessor may carry; and (ii) issued by reputable and 

independent insurance companies with a current rating in Best’s Insurance Guide or any successor thereto 

(or, if there is none, an organization having a national reputation), as having a general policy holder rating 

of “A” and a financial rating of at least “13” and which are licensed to do business in the state where the 

Leased Premises are located.  Such policies shall contain a provision that Lessor, although named as an 

insured, shall nevertheless be entitled to recover thereunder for any loss occasioned to it, its servants, 

agents and employees by reason of the negligence of Lessee, and that Lessor shall not be responsible for 

the performance of any of Lessee’s duties or obligations under the policy or for the premiums therefore.  

Renewal or additional policies shall be procured and maintained by Lessee in like manner and to like 

extent. 

 (b) The policies reflecting the insurance coverage required pursuant to the above Paragraph 

shall provide that they may not be canceled without thirty (30) days prior notice to Lessor and Lessee.  

Lessee shall promptly deliver to Lessor, prior to the Commencement Date, either copies of the insurance 

policies or certificates evidencing the existence of such insurance and thereafter within thirty (30) days 

prior to the expiration of the term of each such policy. 

 (c) During the Lease Term, Lessor shall carry fire and extended coverage insurance on the 

Leased Premises (not including Lessee’s fixtures, equipment and personal property) in an amount not less 

than the full replacement cost thereof. 

13. INDEMNITY: 

 (a) Lessee shall defend, indemnify and hold Lessor and Lessor’s representatives, agents, 

members, employees, successors and assigns harmless from and against all claims, demands, liabilities, 

causes of action, suits, judgments, losses, penalties, damages and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and 

costs) (collectively a “Loss”) arising from (i) Lessee’s use of the Leased Premises or (ii) Lessee’s failure 

to perform its obligations under this Lease, except where such Loss occurred as a result, in whole or in 

part, directly or indirectly, from the default or negligence of Lessor, its agents, employees, successors or 

assigns in which case each party will be responsible for its pro rata portion of the Loss.  If any proceeding 

is filed for which indemnity is required hereunder, Lessee agrees, upon request therefore, to defend 

Lessor in such proceeding at Lessee’s sole cost utilizing counsel satisfactory to Lessor. 

(b) This indemnity shall survive the expiration, cancellation or termination of this Lease.  

 



Page 6 of 12 
 

14. CONTROL OF THE LEASED PREMISES: 

 (a) LESSEE’S EXCLUSIVE CONTROL: Lessee warrants and represents that during any 

Term of this Lease, the daily operations, use, and occupancy of the Leased Premises shall be under the 

sole and exclusive control of Lessee. 

 (b) SURVIVAL: The warranties and representations set forth in this Article shall survive 

the expiration, cancellation, or termination of this Lease. 

15. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION OF THE LEASED PREMISES: 

 (a) DESTRUCTION OF LEASED PREMISES: In the event that the Leased Premises are 

destroyed, or that damage to the Leased Premises is so extensive that restoration or repairs cannot be 

accomplished within ninety (90) days, as certified by the opinion of the Building Official of the Town of 

Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, then the Lessee or the Lessor may terminate this Lease by giving the 

other written notice before any restoration or repair is commenced, and in that event, any applicable 

insurance proceeds shall be paid to the Lessor. 

 (b) DAMAGE TO THE LEASED PREMISES: In the event of an insured loss and 

subject to the termination provisions set forth herein, the Lessor shall repair or restore the Leased 

Premises to as good a condition as existed before such damage occurred, to the extent of any available 

insurance proceeds.  Should the Lessor provide the Lessee with the opinion of an experienced insurance 

adjuster that such insurance proceeds will not be sufficient to pay for such repairs or restoration, then the 

Lessor or the Lessee may terminate this Lease by written notice, in which event all insurance proceeds 

will be paid to the Lessor. 

16. CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS BY LESSEE: Lessee shall not construct any 

leasehold improvements nor make any leasehold alterations upon the Leased Premises without the prior 

written consent of Lessor.  Except as herein provided, no improvements hereafter located on the Leased 

Premises or any additions or improvements made during the term of this Lease, may be removed or 

materially altered. 

17. EMINENT DOMAIN: 

 (a) TERMINATION OF LEASE: If any portion of the Leased Premises is taken for any 

public or quasi-public use under any governmental law, ordinance, or regulation, or by right of eminent 

domain, or by private purchase under threat or initiation of exercise of the right of eminent domain, this 

Lease shall terminate upon the election of either Party, effective on the date possession of the Leased 

Premises, or any portion thereof, is taken by the condemning authority or private purchaser as aforesaid.  

In the case of such partial condemnation and an election by the Parties hereto not to terminate this Lease, 

then the Rent payable hereunder shall, during the unexpired portion of the Lease, be pro-rated, based 

upon percentage of square feet of the Leased Premises so taken, of the whole of the Leased Premises 

stated in this Lease.  The Lessor shall promptly provide the Lessee a copy of any and all notices from any 

such condemning authority, or private purchaser as mentioned above, respecting any requirements that 

the Lessor surrendered its right to all or any portion of the Leased Premises pursuant to this Article. 



Page 7 of 12 
 

 (b) NOTICE OF ELECTION: Any notice of election by the Lessee to terminate this 

Lease as provided in this Article shall be given by the Lessee to the Lessor within thirty (30) days after 

written notice by the Lessor to the Lessee as provided in this Article, or within thirty (30) days after 

receipt by Lessee of actual knowledge of any requirement that the Lessor surrendered its right to 

possession to all or any part of the Leased Premises, whichever shall first occur.  In the event this Lease is 

not terminated pursuant to this Article, after taking of a portion of the Leased Premises, the Lessor shall 

make such reasonable repairs or alterations as may be necessary to make the structure of the Leased 

Premises and architectural whole, and this Lease shall thereafter be in full force and effect, as provided 

herein. 

 (c) CONDEMNATION: Any payment or award from the condemning authority shall be 

the property of the Lessor. 

18. SUBLETTING PROHIBITED: Lessee shall not sublet all or any portion of the Leased Premises, 

or assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights under this Lease, in whole or in part, to any third party 

without the prior written consent of the Lessor.  Any and all documents utilized by the Lessee to evidence 

any subletting or assignment to which the Lessor has consented shall be subject to prior written approval 

by the Lessor and its counsel. 

19. DEFAULT OF LESSEE: Occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a Default 

under the terms of this Lease: 

 (a) FAILURE TO PAY RENT FOR MONEY DUE:  If the Lessee shall fail to pay 

any payment of Rent, or any other sum of money due and payable under this Lease, whether to the Lessor 

or otherwise, when due and payable, and such failure shall continue for a period of ten (10) days from the 

due date thereof; 

 (b) VIOLATION OF LEASE: If the Lessee shall violate any term of this Lease, or fail 

to perform any term, condition, covenant, obligation, or agreement to be performed or observed by the 

Lessee under this Lease, including but not limited to failing to use the Leased Premises in accordance 

with the Permitted Use as set forth hereinabove, and such failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) 

days after the delivery of written notice thereof; 

 (c) ABANDONMENT OF LEASED PREMISES: If the Lessee shall desert, vacate, or not 

regularly use the Leased Premises for a period of thirty (30) days or more, even though the Lessee 

continues to timely pay all Rent Payments when due; 

 (d) Any of the following occurs with respect to Lessee:  (i) Lessee becomes insolvent as such 

term is defined in Title II of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) or under the insolvency 

laws of any state, district, commonwealth or territory of the United States (the “Insolvency Laws”); (ii) 

the appointment of a receiver or custodian of any or all of Lessee’s property or assets or the institution of 

a foreclosure action upon any of Lessee’s real or personal property as pertains to the Leased Premises and 

such receiver or custodian or such foreclosure action is not dismissed within ninety (90) days; (iii) 

Lessee’s filing or consenting in writing to a petition under the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code or the 

Insolvency Laws or in any bankruptcy, reorganization, composition, extension, arrangement or 

insolvency proceeding; (iv) the filing of a petition against Lessee as the subject debtor under the 



Page 8 of 12 
 

Bankruptcy Code or Insolvency Laws, which is not consented to by such subject debtor and which either 

is not dismissed within ninety (90) days of filing or results in the issuance of an order for relief against the 

debtor; (v) Lessee’s making or consenting in writing to a voluntary assignment for the benefit of creditors 

or a common law composition of creditors; or (vi) a court ordered dissolution of Lessee or court ordered 

liquidation of substantially all of Lessee’s assets; 

 (e) DISSOLUTION: The dissolution of the Lessee for any reason; or 

 (f) WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS: Any of the representations or warranties 

of Lessee as set forth in this Lease are or become untrue or incorrect in any material respect during the 

term of this Lease. 

20. RIGHTS OF LESSOR ON DEFAULT; REMEDIES CUMULATIVE: 

 (a) If Lessee should fail to perform or observe any of the conditions or provisions of this 

Lease for thirty (30) days after written notice by Lessor of such breach, fail to timely pay any payment of 

Rent or any other sum of money payable under this Lease within ten (10) days of the due date thereof or 

any other event of default by Lessee occurs under the provisions of this Lease, Lessor may, at Lessor’s 

option, in addition to any remedies available to Lessor at law or in equity, take any one or more of the 

following actions:  (i) re-enter and repossess the Leased Premises in accordance with all applicable law; 

(ii) sue for any unpaid rent and any other damages sustained, including reasonable attorney fees or 

collection fees; or (iii) terminate this Lease.  Upon any default by Lessee, Lessor shall have any or all of 

the above remedies and all other remedies at law or in equity, payable together with reasonable attorney 

fees, costs of collection fee equal to fifty percent (50%) of the delinquent balance may be added to the 

amount due and court costs, all of which amounts owing by Lessee shall be paid upon demand.  Leasing 

commissions or fees to release the Leased Premises will also be the Lessee’s expense.  The taking of any 

or all of the foregoing actions, including termination, shall not in any way terminate Lessee’s liability 

under this lease for the payment of Rent. 

 (b) All the rights and remedies given to Lessor in this Lease are reserved and conferred upon 

Lessor as distinct, separate, and cumulative remedies, and no one of them, whether exercised by Lessor or 

not, shall be deemed to be in exclusion of any of the others. 

 (c) If any legal action or other proceeding is brought by Lessor for the enforcement of this 

Lease, or because of a dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with all or any of the 

provisions of this Lease, and Lessor prevails, then Lessor shall be entitled to recover its reasonable 

attorney’s fees and any costs incurred as a result of any such legal action or other proceeding, whether 

incurred before the institution of a suit or after the commencement of suit, including appellate 

proceedings, in addition to any other relief to which Lessor may be entitled. 

21. DEFAULT OF LESSOR: Occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a Default 

under the terms of this Lease: 

 (a) If the Lessor should fail to perform or observe any of the conditions or terms of this 

Lease, and such failure to perform or observe shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written 

notice to the Lessor by the Lessee of such. 



Page 9 of 12 
 

22. INTERPRETATION: The Lessee acknowledges that the Lessee has reviewed and agreed to all 

the terms and provisions of this Lease and that the Lessee has had a full opportunity to consult with an 

attorney of the Lessee’s choosing concerning the legal consequences of entering into this Lease with the 

Lessor.  As a result of the foregoing, it is the intent of the Parties hereto that this Lease shall not be 

construed or interpreted against either Party in any dispute concerning any term or provision of this 

Lease.  

23.  NO WAIVER: The Lessor’s acceptance of any payment of Rent following any Default by the 

Lessee shall not waive the Lessor’s rights regarding such a Default.  No waiver by the Lessor of any 

violation or breach of any of the terms contained in this Lease shall waive the Lessor’s rights regarding 

any future violation of such term, or any violation of any other term contained within this Lease.  The 

Lessor’s acceptance of any partial payment of Rent shall not waive the Lessor’s rights with regard to the 

remaining portion of the Rent regardless of any endorsement or other statement on any instrument 

delivered in payment of Rent, or any writing delivered to the Town in connection therewith.  

Accordingly, the Lessor’s acceptance of any partial payment as required by this Lease shall not constitute 

an accord and satisfaction with respect to the full amount of any such payment. 

24.  MECHANIC’S LIENS OR OTHER LIENS: The Lessee shall have no power to subject the 

Leased Premises or the Lessor’s interest in the Leased Premises to any mechanic’s lien or any other lien.  

If any mechanic’s lien or other lien or order for the payment of money shall be filed against the Leased 

Premises by reason of, or arising out of, any labor or material furnished or alleged to have been furnished 

or to be furnished to or on behalf of the Lessee at the Leased Premises, or for or by reason of any change, 

alteration, or addition or the cost or expense thereof or any contract relating thereto, the Lessee shall 

cause the same to be discharged of record against the Leased Premises by bond or otherwise as allowed 

by law at the sole expense of the Lessee, within thirty (30) days after written demand therefore by the 

Lessor, and shall also defend on behalf of the Lessor at the Lessee’s sole cost and expense, any action, 

suit, or proceeding that may be brought thereon or for the enforcement of any such lien or order, and the 

Lessee shall save the Lessor harmless from any judgment, claim, or damage resulting therefrom. 

25. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES: The Lessee agrees that at any time and from time to time upon 

not less than ten (10) days prior written request by the Lessor, to execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the 

Lessor a statement in writing certifying that this Lease is unmodified and is in full force and effect (or if 

there have been modifications, that this Lease is in full force and effect as modified and stating 

modifications), and the dates to which the Rent and other charges have been paid in advance, if any, it 

being intended that any such statement delivered pursuant to this Article may be relied on by any 

prospective purchaser or purchasers of the Lessor’s interest in the Building or the Leased Premises. 

26. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL: TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE LESSOR 

AND THE LESSEE EACH AGREE TO WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY 

LITIGATION ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LEASE, OR TO HAVE A JURY 

PARTICIPATE IN RESOLVING ANY DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF OR WITH RESPECT TO THIS 

LEASE OR ANY OTHER INTRUMENT, DOCUMENT, OR AGREEMENT EXECUTED OR 

DELIVERED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, OR THE TRANSACTIONS RELATED HERETO. 

 



Page 10 of 12 
 

27. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: 

 (a) HAZARDOUS MATERIALS PROHIBITED: The Lessee shall not cause or permit any 

hazardous materials to be brought upon, kept, or used in or about the Leased Premises (other than in the 

ordinary course of the Lessee’s Permitted Use, and then only in compliance with any and all applicable 

laws) without the prior written consent of the Lessor, which consent may be withheld by the Lessor for 

any reason.  “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any substance, material, or waste which is now or 

hereafter classified and/or considered to be hazardous, toxic, or dangerous, under any law or regulation 

relating to pollution or the protection or regulation of human health, natural resources, or the 

environment, or which opposes or threatens to pose a hazard to the health or safety of any person on or 

about the Leased Premises. 

 (b) LESSOR’S RIGHTS: If the Lessee breaches its obligations under this Article, the 

Lessor may, but is not obligated to, immediately take, at the Lessee’s expense, any and all actions 

reasonably appropriate to remedy the same, including taking any appropriate actions to clean up or 

remediate any contamination resulting from the Lessee’s use, generation, storage, or disposal of any 

Hazardous Materials. 

 (c) INDEMNIFICATION: The Lessee shall indemnify the Lessor and pay the cost of any 

cleanup or remediation and shall defend the Lessor, and hold the Lessor harmless from any claims, 

judgments, damages, penalties, fines, or losses which arise during or after the Term of this Lease from or 

in connection with the presence or suspected presence of any Hazardous Materials in, on, or under the 

Leased Premises, or within any building, which Hazardous Materials were brought upon, kept, or used in 

or about the Leased Premises or any Building, by the Lessee.  This indemnity provision shall survive the 

termination or expiration of this Lease. 

 (d) SURVIVAL: The obligations of the Lessee as set forth in this Article shall survive the 

expiration, cancellation, or termination of this Lease. 

28. MISCELLANEOUS: 

 (a) BINDING EFFECT:  This Lease shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon 

the Lessor and Lessee and their respective successors and assigns, if any are permitted hereunder. 

 (b) ENTIRE AGREEMENT/AMENDMENT AND MODICIFACTIONS: This Lease 

supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the Parties with respect to the Leased Premises 

and all other matters contained herein, and constitutes the sole and entire agreement and understanding 

between the Lessor and Lessee with respect to the Lease of the Leased Premises.  This Lease shall not be 

modified or amended except by an instrument in writing signed by the Lessor and the Lessee. 

 (c) SEVERABILITY: In the event that any provision of this Lease shall be held invalid 

or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 

unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

 (d) EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS:  This Lease may be simultaneously 

executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute one 

and the same instrument. 



Page 11 of 12 
 

 (e) APPLICABLE LAW: This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of South Carolina. 

 (f) CAPTIONS: The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in no way 

define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or Articles of this Lease. 

 (g) RECORDING PROHIBITED: The Parties hereto may not record this Lease in the 

Office of the Register of Deed for Beaufort County, South Carolina. 

 (h) PLURAL/SINGULAR: Where appropriate, the use of the singular herein shall include 

and be deemed to be the plural and the use of the plural herein shall be deemed to include the singular. 

 (i) NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: The Parties hereto affirmatively represent that 

this Lease is made solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns 

and not for the benefit of any third party who is not a signature party hereto.  No party other than the 

signature parties and their respective successors and assigns hereto shall have any enforceable rights 

hereunder, or have any right to the enforcement hereof, or any claim for damages as a result of any 

alleged breach hereof. 

 (j) NOTICES: All rental payments, notices, applications, requests, certificates, or other 

communications hereunder shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered in 

person, or mailed by regular first class mail, postage prepaid (in such case, delivery shall be deemed 

complete upon mailing), addressed as follows, or to such other place as may be designated in writing by 

the Parties: 

 To the Lessor:  THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 
    Stephen G. Riley, Town Manager 
    One Town Center Court 
    Hilton Head Island, SC 29928 
 
 To the Lessee:  The Drydock Enterprises, Ltd. d/b/a The Drydock 
    ATTN:  Rob Arbogast 
    49 Otter Road 
    Hilton Head Island, SC 29928 
 
 (k) SURVIVAL:  The obligations of the Lessee as set forth in this Lease shall survive the 
expiration, cancellation, or termination of this Lease, whether or not expressly stated with respect to any 
specific obligation. 
 
 (l) FURTHER ASSURANCES AND CORRECTIVE DOCUMENTS: The Lessor and 

Lessee agree to do, execute, acknowledge, deliver, or cause to be done all such further acts as may be 

reasonably determined to be necessary to carry out this Lease and give effect hereto.  The Lessor and 

Lessee agree that each shall, upon request, execute and deliver such other or corrective documents as may 

be reasonably determined to be necessary, either before or after the execution, cancellation, or termination 

of this Lease. 

 



Page 12 of 12 
 

29. PRIOR LEASES TERMINATED: Any and all prior leases which Lessee may have entered 

into with respect to the Leased Premises are hereby terminated, and are considered null and void and of 

no further force or effect, including but not limited to the Lease between Lessee and Glover Real Estate, 

LLC, dated August 11, 2009 and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

 

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina and The Drydock 

Enterprises, Ltd. d/b/a The Drydock have, or have caused their duly authorized officers and 

representatives to, execute this Lease as of the date and year first above written. 

 

 

WITNESSES:     THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND,   

      SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

 

_________________________________ By:       

         David Bennett, Mayor 

 

 

 

__________________________________ Attest:     ______ 

Stephen G. Riley, ICMA-CM, Town Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   THE DRYDOCK ENTERPRISES, LTD. D/B/A 

   THE DRYDOCK 

 

 

_________________________________ By:         

 

 

 

__________________________________ Its:    _________________________ 



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





EXHIBIT “B” 

 

PRIOR LEASE 

 





















TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

Community Development Department 
 

 

 

 
 

 

TO:  Stephen G. Riley, ICMA – CM, Town Manager 

 

FROM: Charles F. Cousins, AICP, Community Development Director  

 

DATE: January 8, 2015 

 

SUBJECT: Sale of 2.4 Acres of Town land on Spanish Wells Road to the 

Paddocks Limited Liability Company 

 

 
 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends Town Council authorize the Mayor and Town 

Manager to execute a contract for the sale of 2.4 acres of Town land to the Paddocks 

Limited Liability Company. 

 

Summary:  In 2012 the Town was approached about the possibility of selling a 2.4 acre 

parcel of Town land fronting Spanish Wells Road to enhance the potential development 

of a residential subdivision. (See attached aerial photograph.) The Town parcel would be 

combined with an adjacent approximately 30 acre tract along Old House Creek owned by 

the developer to create his subdivision.  During discussion of this item in executive 

session, there appeared to be a consensus for staff to bring forward an ordinance and 

contract to be considered at a public meeting by Town Council.  The proposed ordinance 

and contract are attached.  The developer has been working with staff to receive approval 

for his proposed single family home subdivision.  Staff is ready to approve this 

subdivision if the sale of the property is completed. 

 

Background:  In 2003 the Town acquired this 2.4 acre parcel from the SCDOT using 

storm water utility funds for $168,000.  The property includes a ditch that serves to drain 

a portion of the Cross Island Parkway.  The Town’s reason for this purchase was to 

protect this drainage way.  For years there had been a dispute between the SCDOT and 

the adjoining property owned by Paddocks Limited Liability Company over the SCDOT’s 

right to convey storm water across his property from this ditch.  When approached by this 

property owner about the possibility to buy the Town’s 2.4 acres, the Town saw a way to 

both protect the existing ditch and establish a clear means to convey storm water from the 

Cross Island across his adjoining property. 

 

  



 2 

The proposed contract encumbers the parcel the Town would sell with an easement to 

permanently protect the existing ditch.  Additionally, a drainage easement will be 

provided to the Town by the buyer across his adjacent property to convey storm water 

from this ditch across his property to the marshes of Old House Creek.  These easements 

are depicted on the attached plat.  Also the plat shows a PSD #1 lift station in the lower 

right portion of the 2.4 acre tract.  The Town previously provided the PSD with an 

easement for this lift station. 

 

In developing a proposed sales price for this property, the original purchase price of 

$168,000 was considered along with the limitations placed on the property by both the 

easements for the existing ditch and for the PSD lift station.  Additionally, consideration 

was given to the fact that the proposed buyer is providing the Town an easement across 

his property.  Based on these factors, there appeared to be a consensus among the Town 

Council that a sales price of $150,000 is appropriate. 

 

 



Spanish Wells Road Parcel

This informat ion has been compiled from a variety of unverified general sources

at various times and as such is intended to be used only as a guide. The Town of 

Hilton Head I sland assumes no liability for it s accuracy or stat e of completion.

TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND
ONE TOWN CENTER COURT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, S.C. 29928

PHONE (843) 341-4600

January 8, 2015

C

O
N

W
T

NI
L

O
R

A
C

H
T

U
OS

DNASIDAE
H

N
O

T
LI

H
F

O

A

16 36 19 83

L

P R
E

A
S

E RU
RA E E T

E
RA

RE
PSO

RP

Town of Hilton Head Island

SPANISH
WELLS 1

H
E

ATH
E
R

LA
N

E

JONESVIL
LE

ROAD

GRANT DRIVE

SPANIS
H

W
ELLS

ROAD

W
A
L

K
ING

HORSE STREET

COLONIA
L

DRIV
E

SO
L B

LATT J
R P

ARKW
AY

SOL B
LATT JR P

ARKW
AY

1 inch = 300 feet

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

µ

Legend

Spanish Wells Road Parcel

Town Owned Property





 1 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NUMBER 2015-02  ORDINANCE NUMBER 2015-___ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND 

THE EXECUTION OF A DEED FOR THE SALE OF APPROXIMATELY 2.4 ACRES 

OF REAL PROPERTY ALONG SPANISH WELLS ROAD TO THE PADDOCKS 

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF S.C. CODE 

ANN.  § 5-7-40 (SUPP. 2011), AND § 2-7-20, CODE OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD 

ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, (1983); AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 

LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Hilton Head Island (hereinafter “Town”) owns approximately 

2.4 acres of real property known as R510-007-000-147B-0000 (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Property”), which is located on Hilton Head Island, Beaufort County, South Carolina; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Town has agreed to sell the Property to The Paddocks Limited Liability 

Company in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in that certain Sale and Purchase 

Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Contract”); and, 

 WHEREAS, under the provisions of S.C. Code Ann. § 5-7-40 (SUPP. 2011) and § 2-7-

20, Code of the Town of Hilton Head Island , South Carolina, (1983), the conveyance or granting 

of an interest in real property owned by the Town of Hilton Head Island must be authorized by 

Ordinance. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED BY THE TOWN 

COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, AND 

IT IS ORDAINED BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE SAID COUNCIL, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1. Execution of Agreement. 

(a) The Mayor and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the 

Contract in a substantially similar form to that attached hereto as Exhibit "A" for the 

conveyance of Town-owned real property to The Paddocks Limited Liability 

Company; and  



 2 

(b) The Mayor and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to take such other and 

further actions as may be necessary to complete the transactions contemplated in the 

Contract as authorized hereby, including the execution and delivery of the Deed and 

all other documents called for in the Contract. 

Section 2. Severability.   

If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held or 

deemed to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then such 

section, phrase, sentence or portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 

provision and shall not affect the remaining portion thereof.   

Section 3. Effective Date.   

 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption thereof by the Town Council for 

the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina.   

  

 

 

 

 

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 3 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN 

OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, ON THIS ___ DAY OF 

_______________________, 2015. 

 

 

       ___________________________________  
        David Bennett, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Victoria L. Pfannenschmidt, Town Clerk 
 
First Reading:   _____________________  
 
Second Reading:_____________________     
 
 
Approved as to form: ______________________________ 
   Gregory M. Alford, Town Attorney 
 
 
Introduced by Council Member:______________________ 









































































MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Town Council 

   

FROM: Stephen G. Riley, ICMA-CM, Town Manager 

 

RE: Proposed Ordinance Number 2015-05 Committees of Council 

  

DATE: January 14, 2015 

 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Town Council consider first reading of Proposed 

Ordinance Number 2015-05, amending Section 2-5-60 (Committees of Council) of the Town 

Code. 

 

Summary:  This Ordinance amends Section 2-5-60 of the Town Code.  These changes will 

amend in part the five standing Town Council committees and establish the authority of the 

Mayor to appoint Town resident citizens to such committees as he shall deem necessary and 

appropriate for the efficient operation of the Town Council.  

 

Background:  Currently, Town Code Section 2-5-60 establishes five (5) standing committees 

composed of three (3) council members and an alternate, appointed by the Mayor.  Proposed 

Ordinance 2015-05 makes changes to the standing committees and authorizes the Mayor to 

appoint Town resident citizens to standing committees. 

 

Section 2-5-60 (b) has been changed to clarify the distinction between standing and non-

standing committees of Town Council. 

 



 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

 

 ORDINANCE NO.      PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO.  2015-05 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH 

CAROLINA, TO AMEND TITLE 2 GENERAL GOVERNMENT AND 

ADMINISTRATION OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE TOWN OF HILTON 

HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA BY AMENDING CHAPTER 5 

(MEETINGS OF COUNCIL AND RULES OF PROCEDURE) SECTION 2-5-60, 

COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina 

previously adopted Ordinance 2008-03, amending Section 2-5-60 for the purpose of codifying 

Town Council Standing Committees (Intergovernmental Relations Committee, Personnel 

Committee, Planning and Development Standards Committee, Public Facilities Committee, and 

Public Safety Committee) and establishing authority of the Mayor to appoint council members to 

such committees as he shall seem necessary and appropriate for the efficient operation of the 

Town Council; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of the Town Council Standing Committee system is to facilitate 

a more efficient Town Council system within the Town Council/Manager form of government 

and to allow for in-depth analysis of issues, proposed ordinances, and other Town-related 

matters; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council now desires to amend Section 2-5-60 by establishing a 

new Town Council Standing Committee (Finance and Administrative Committee), incorporating 

the existing Personnel Committee into a newly-formed Town Council Standing Committee 

(Community Services Committee), renaming the existing Planning and Development Standards 

Committee to the Public Planning Committee and establishing the authority for the Mayor to 

appoint town resident citizens to serve as Town Council Standing Committee members in order 

to provide for an efficient operation of the Town Council that will benefit both the Town and its 

citizens. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED BY THE TOWN 

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA; AND IT 

IS ORDAINED BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE SAID TOWN COUNCIL: 

 

 NOTE: Underlined and bold-faced typed portions indicate additions to the Municipal 

Code. Stricken portions indicate deletions to the Municipal Code. 

 

 

 



   

 Section  1.  Sec. 2-5-60. - Committees of Council. 

 

(a) The Town Council shall have standing committees to assist in the efficient 

operation of the Town Council, namely the Finance and Administrative 

Committee, Intergovernmental Relations Committee, Personnel 

Community Services Committee, Planning and Development Standards 

Public Planning Committee, Public Facilities Committee, and Public 

Safety Committee. Each committee shall be composed of three (3) Town 

Council members and an alternate, who shall also be a member of council. 

The Mayor shall appoint the members and the alternate and shall designate 

a chairman. To assist such council committees, the Mayor may appoint 

town resident citizens to serve as committee members; provided, 

however, if any council member objects to such committee 

appointment, a majority of council shall make the appointment. 

 

(b) The Town Council may appoint, by resolution, such other committees i.e. 

non-standing committees, composed exclusively of council members as 

it shall deem necessary and appropriate for the efficient operation of the 

Town Council. To assist such council committees, the Mayor may appoint 

town resident citizens to serve as committee members; provided, however, 

if any council member objects to any such committee appointment, a 

majority of council shall make the appointment. The term of the 

committee membership of any town resident citizen shall be as prescribed 

by resolution, but in no event shall the term of any committee extend 

beyond the term of the then sitting council.  

 

(c) The Town Council may, by resolution, adopt rules and procedures to guide 

the operation of standing committees. The Town Council may, at the time 

of the creation of any other committees of council, as part of the resolution 

creating the committee, or separately, adopt rules and procedures to guide 

the conduct of such committees.  

 

 

 Section  2  Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence, or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall 

not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 

 

 Section  3  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption thereof by 

the Town Council for the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina. 

 

 

 

 



   

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF 

HILTON HEAD ISLAND ON THIS _______ DAY OF ___________________, 2015. 

 

             

      By:__________________________________ 

       David Bennett, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By:_______________________________________ 

Victoria L. Pfannenschmidt, Town Clerk  

 

 

First Reading: ______________________________ 

 

Second Reading: ____________________________ 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Gregory M. Alford, Town Attorney 

 

 

Introduced by Council Member:__________________________________ 

 


